
PASCAGOULA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING – TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2016, 6:00 P.M. 

 
 

  WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER: 
 

 INVOCATION:     Councilman Hill   
 
  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilman Tipton  
 
   PROCLAMATION: 
 

1. Fair Housing Awareness Month 
 

2. National Walking Day 
 
3. Coastal Treasures Pilgrimage Day 

 
 

   ADDRESS THE COUNCIL: 
 

4. 2015 Mississippi State Karate Champions – Koast Karate Association 
 

5. Best of Pascagoula Recognition 
 

   CONSENT AGENDA:* 
 

6. Minutes of the Council meeting of March 15, 2016 
Recommended Action: adopt and approve minutes. 

 
7. Minutes of Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority meetings of February 11, 2016 and 

February 26, 2016 
Recommended Action: acknowledge receipt of minutes. 

 
8. Minutes of Pascagoula Mayor’s Youth Council meeting of March 14, 2016 

Recommended Action: acknowledge receipt of minutes. 
 
9. Minutes of Historic Preservation Commission meeting of January 27, 2016 

Recommended Action: acknowledge receipt of minutes. 
 
10. Minutes of Strategic Plan Steering Committee meeting of February 18, 2016 

Recommended Action: acknowledge receipt of minutes. 
 
11. Advertising the resources of the City – Litter Bugs Me Day on April 22, 2016 

Recommended Action: authorize Parks & Recreation Department to host a Litter Bugs Me 
Day on April 22, 2016. Advertise the resources of the City by offering educational packages 
to Pascagoula School District teachers with “Litter Bugs Me” stickers, activity coloring 
books, car litter bags, garbage bags and gloves at a cost not to exceed $800.00. 

 



12. 2016 MML Annual Conference 
Recommended Action: approval of conference fees and travel for the City Council to attend 
the 2016 MML Annual Conference in Biloxi, MS, on June 27-29, 2016. 

 
13. Resolution to place lien on parcel of land for cost of cleaning 

Recommended Action: adopt Resolution to place lien on 1415 St. Peter Avenue in the 
amount of $6,130.75. 

 
14.  Order to determine whether the parcels of land are in such a state of uncleanliness as to be a 

menace to the public health and safety of this community 
Recommended Action: adopt Order for 1812 Prospect and 4813 Chateau. 

 
15. Ordinance to amend Article III to add new Division 4 – City Prosecutor 

Recommended Action: adopt Ordinance. 
 
16. Economic Development Internship 2016 

 Recommended Action: authorize the Director of Community and Economic Development to 
execute the Economic Development Internship Agreement with Zoie Mestayer, Resurrection 
Catholic School. 
 

17. Award of July 4, 2016, Fireworks Display 
 Recommended Action: approval to award the 2016 4th of July Fireworks Show to J&M 
Displays and authorize City Manager to execute related documents. 
 

18. Amendment No. 1 to Agreement with Compton Engineering  for BB Jennings Boardwalk 
Project 

 Recommended Action: approve Amendment No. 1 and authorize City Manager to execute 
related documents. 
 

19. Task Order No. 052 with Compton Engineering for Market Street Redevelopment – Area 1 
– Beach Blvd. to Parsley Avenue 

 Recommended Action: approve Task Order No. 052 and authorize City Manager to execute 
related documents. 
 

20. Contract with Government Capital Corporation for the financing of software needed for the 
Police Department. 

 Recommended Action: approval of contract and authorize City Manager to execute related     
documents. 
 
 
 
CITY MANAGER 

 
21.  Work Session with Council to discuss the Public Works and Solid Waste Contracts 

Recommended Action: consider a date for a work session. 
 

 
 
 



CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

22.  Ordinance to amend Article III to add a new Division 5 – Public Defender 
Recommended Action: adopt Ordinance. 
 
 
COMMUNITY/ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
23.  Appointment to the Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority 

 Recommended Action: consider re-appointment of Jackie Grimes. 
 

24.  Central Business District Revision – Conceptual Design 
 Recommended Action: approve the proposed revisions to the Central Business District. 
 

25. Brownfields – Phase II Environmental Site Assessment for the Pascagoula Ice and Freezer 
Company Property. 
Recommended Action: authorize the City Manager to execute the cost proposal for the 

Phase II Environmental Site Assessment for the Pascagoula Ice and Freezer Company 
property. 
 

 
 PARKS AND RECREATION: 
 

26.  Pascagoula Recreation Commission Appointment – April 2016 
Recommended Action: accept application from David Blackledge for the vacancy on the 
Pascagoula Recreation Commission. Appoint new member to the Pascagoula Recreation 
Commission effective April 6, 2016. 
 

27. Job Description for Beautification Crew Leader 
 Recommended Action: approve job description. 
 

28. Job Description for Laborer - Beautification 
 Recommended Action: approve job description. 
 

 
 CLAIMS DOCKET 

 
29.  Order for Docket of Claims for April 5, 2016 

 Recommended Action: approve Order for Docket of Claims. 
 
 
30. EXECUTIVE SESSION: To discuss a land transaction 

 
 
RECESS 

 
 

* Consent Agenda – All matters listed under Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the  
 City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will not be separate discussion of these items.  If   
discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 



     



Agenda Number:  

April 5, 2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Fair Housing Awareness Month Proclamation

Proclaim April as "Fair Housing Awareness Month" in the City of Pascagoula in conjunction
with the national designation of Fair Housing Awareness Month.

cwarren
Typewritten Text

cwarren
Typewritten Text

cwarren
Typewritten Text
 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
1.



 

 
 
  
 Whereas, In 1968, the Federal Fair Housing Act was passed by                         
   Congress and adopted to protect against unlawful housing 
   discrimination based on race, religion, color, gender, and                  
   national origin.  
 
 Whereas,  In 1988, the Fair Housing Amendments Act added   
   additional provisions that extend protection to persons  
   with disabilities and families with children under the  
   age of 18. 
 
 Whereas,  We all benefit from living in a culturally diverse society,  
   and  
 
 Whereas,  In an effort to eliminate illegal housing discrimination  
   from which disparate impact occurs, 
  
 Now,   Therefore, I, Harry J. Blevins, Mayor of the                                                    
   City of Pascagoula, do hereby proclaim   
                                      ____  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 In the City of Pascagoula. I urge all citizens to celebrate    
 cultural diversity throughout Fair Housing Awareness Month        
 and year round. 
     
    Dated this 5th day of April, 2016 
 
 
  Mayor ____________________________________________ 

April as 
Fair Housing Awareness Month 



Agenda Number:  

4/5/16

City Manager/Public Relations

Anne Pitre 228.382.2086

Proclamation - National Walking Day April 6th

cwarren
Typewritten Text
2.



Proclamation 
 

WHEREAS, cardiovascular disease is the leading cause of death in the United States and 

accounts for one‐third of all deaths and stroke is the number 5 cause of death in the United 

States; and 

 

WHEREAS, regular physical activity can reduce cardiovascular disease risk and may increase 

life expectancy, but only 36 percent of children and 44 percent of adults get the recommended 

amount; and 

 

WHEREAS, the American Heart Association recommends that children and adolescents 

participate in at least 60 minutes of moderate or vigorous intensity physical activity each day 

and adults do at least 150 minutes of moderate intensity physical activity or at least 75 minutes 

of vigorous intensity physical activity (or combination of both) each week; and  

 

WHEREAS, moderate physical activity has many proven benefits for an individual’s overall 

health including controlling body weight, blood cholesterol, and blood pressure. All of these 

changes help reduce the risk of cardiovascular disease and stroke; and 

 

WHEREAS, by providing families and children with safe places to be physically active, we can 

take steps towards improving heart health and reducing obesity rates; and  

 

WHEREAS, studies have reported that people who have parks or recreational facilities nearby 

exercise more than those who do not have easy access; and 

 

WHEREAS, on National Walking Day, April 6, the American Heart Association will kick‐off a 

month‐long campaign to encourage Americans to become more physically active; and 

 

WHEREAS, on National Walking Day, the American Heart Association encourages all 

Americans to take a 30‐minute walk with family, friends and colleagues and to share their 

minutes walked on social media with hashtag #AHALaceUp. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Harry J. Blevins, recognizing the importance of regular physical 

activity, do hereby proclaim Wednesday, April 6, 2016 as “National Walking Day” in 

Pascagoula and urge all citizens to show their support for physical activity and the fight against 

heart disease and commemorate the month by taking time to get active. 

 

 

 

                ________________________________ 

                Harry “Jim” Blevins, Mayor 



Agenda Number:  

4/5/16

City Manager/Public Relations

Anne Pitre 228.382.2086

Proclamation - Coastal Treasures Pilgrimage Day

cwarren
Typewritten Text
3.



Proclamation 
 

WHEREAS, garden clubs are vital to the quality of life in the communities 

where they are located because they promote the love of gardening, civic 

responsibility, and environmental stewardship; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mississippi Gulf Coast Council of Garden Clubs, Inc. has 

sponsored a pilgrimage of homes across the Gulf Coast for the past sixty‐

four years; and 

 

WHEREAS, the annual Spring Pilgrimage brings visitors from all over the 

country to take in the beauty of the homes across the Mississippi Gulf 

Coast, from Pass Christian to Pascagoula; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Pascagoula has greatly benefited from the favorable 

exposure offered by the Mississippi Gulf Coast Council of Garden Clubs, 

Inc.;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Harry J. Blevins, Mayor of Pascagoula do hereby 

commend the Pascagoula Garden Club and Mississippi Gulf Coast Council 

of Garden Clubs for their dedication to making Pascagoula and the greater 

Gulf Coast ever more beautiful and do hereby proclaim Sunday, April 17, 

2016 
 

Coastal Treasures Spring Pilgrimage Day 
 

 

 

              ______________________________ 

                              Harry “Jim” Blevins 

                             Mayor 



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date: 4/5/16   

 

Submitting Department or Individual: City Manager  

 

Contact Name:        Phone:       

 

 

Agenda Topic: Recognition of the 2015 Mississippi State Karate Champions-Koast 

Karate Association 

Attach additional information as necessary 

 

Action Requested:  

Present Certificate of recognition and t-shirt to each champion. 

 

Budgeted Item Yes  No  Source of Funding  General Fund 
 

Contract Required Yes  No    Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required Yes  No    Grant 
 

       Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 4.



SINGLE DIVISON STATE CHAMPIONS 

Trey Smith- Mini Pee Wee-Hi Blue, Green, Purple-  Kata Forms 

Jim Blevins- Executive Men- Advanced Div.-  Kumite Sparring 

Daniel Lawrence- Young Adult Men-Beginner- Kumite Sparring 

 

 

DOUBLE DIVISION STATE CHAMPIONS: 

Danielle Lawrence- Executive Women-Beginner-  Kata Forms, Kumite Sparring 

Randi Smith- Tots Division- Hi Blue, Green and Purple- Kata, Kumite 

Noah Tolbert- Tiny Tots Division-Yellow- Kata, Kumite 

Bo Smith- Executive Men-Advanced- Kumite & Weapons  

Jenny Thompson- Mini Pee Wee- Brown, Red & Black- Kumite & Weapons 

 

TRIPLE DIVISION STATE CHAMPIONS: 

Scott Lawrence- Executive Men- Beginner- Kata Forms, Kumite Sparring & Weapons 

Samuel Turner- Tots- Lo Blue, Orange- Kata, Kumite Sparring & Weapons 

 

Head Instructor: Hayward Butler 

Assistants: Danny Davis 

                     Lynn Rouse 

 

OTHER RECOGNITION: 

2015 State Champions School of the Year -10 State Champion Title Winners- 3 Singles, 5 Doubles & 2 

Triples  

2015 Competition of the Year- 9 & under Competition of the Year- Samuel Turner 

 

Misc:  

The Lawrence family, Scott, Danielle, & Daniel all were State Champions. 

 

Competitions were held in numerous locations in MS over 2015 with competitors from MS, LA, AL, FL 

and a few more. State Champions are based on total results from all MKA sometime tournaments 

during the year. 

 

 

 



Agenda Number:  

4-5-2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Best of Pascagoula Recognition

Council to acknowledge the Best of Pascagoula winners and participants and distribute
plaques and certificates of recognition.

✔

cwarren
Typewritten Text

cwarren
Typewritten Text

cwarren
Typewritten Text

cwarren
Typewritten Text
5.



     



cwarren
Typewritten Text
6.

































































































































Agenda Number:  

4-5-2016

Community and Economic Development

LaLinda Grace 228-938-2352

Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority Minutes

Acknowledge minutes of PRA 2-11-2016 and 2-26-2016 meetings.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
7.



1 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING  

10:00 AM Thursday, February 11, 2016  
JCEDF, 3033 Pascagoula Street, Pascagoula, Mississippi 

 

The Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority met at the Jackson County Economic 
Development Foundation in a regular meeting on Thursday, February 11, 2016, at 10:00 AM. 
Henry Fox, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM with the following present: 

 
Chairman, Henry Fox 
Secretary/Treasurer, Alice Walker 
Board Member, Jackie Grimes 
 
PRA Executive Director, Jen Dearman 
Economic Development Specialist, LaLinda Grace 
JCEDF, Christine Pate 
Strunk Enterprises, Shannon Strunk 
Gourmet Gurl, Ashley Knecht 
 
Jim Estabrook and Alan Sudduth were absent. 
 
 PRA Chairman Fox welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

***** 
The first item for consideration was the minutes from the PRA meetings held on January 

14, 2016, as recommended by Alice Walker, Secretary/Treasurer.  
After review, Grimes moved to approve and adopt the minutes.  The motion was 

seconded by Walker.   
All present Board members were in favor. 

***** 
 The next item for consideration was the financial report. 

 After review, Walker moved to accept the financial report and authorize PRA 

Comptroller Bobby Parker to issue a manual check for Anchor Square rent revenue.   The 

motion was seconded by Grimes. 

 All present Board members were in favor.   

***** 



2 
 

The next item for consideration was the Anchor Square lease approval for Sharon 

Stennis. After discussion, Walker moved to approve the lease.  The motion was seconded by 

Grimes.  

All present Board Members were in favor.  

***** 

A discussion was held in regards to Ashley Knecht’s lease. 

No action was required of the Board. 

***** 

Ashley Knecht left the meeting at 10:15AM. 

          ***** 

The next item for discussion was the PRA insurance.   
Because Zeal has secured insurance on 651 Delmas, Walker moved to authorize the Chairman 
to execute the offer cancellation notice.  The motion was seconded by Grimes.  All present 
Board members were in favor.  The cancelation notice is spread on the minutes as follows: 



3 
 

 
***** 



4 
 

The next item for discussion was the PRA Annual Report.  After discussion, Alice moved 
to adopt the report and authorize Executive Director, Jen Dearman, to publish the public notice 
for the report.  The motion was seconded by Grimes. 

All present board members were in favor. 
***** 

A discussion was held in regards to the Riverfront Development. 

No action was required of the Board. 

***** 

 A discussion was held in regards to a housing assessment and market opportunities 

study for the City of Pascagoula. An RFP was published on February 3, 2016.   All proposals are 

due March 4, 2016. 

 No action was required of the Board.   

***** 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Grimes moved to adjourn 
the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Walker.   

All present Board members were in favor.  
The meeting ended at 11:30 AM. 
 



1 
 

 
SPECIAL MEETING  

8:00 AM Friday, February 26, 2016  

Pascagoula Senior Center, 1912 Live Oak Avenue, Pascagoula, Mississippi  

 

The Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority met at the Pascagoula Senior Center in a 

special meeting on Friday, February 26, 2016, at 8:00 AM. The meeting coincided with a 

Recessed City Council Meeting.  Chairman Fox, called the meeting to order at 8:11 AM with the 

following present: 

 

Chairman, Henry Fox  PRA Executive Director, Jen Dearman 
PRA Vice Chairman, Alan Sudduth  Economic Development Specialist, LaLinda Grace 
PRA Board , Jackie Grimes   PRA Attorney, Taylor McNeel 
 
Mayor Harry J. Blevins   City Manager, Joe Huffman 
Councilman Freddy Jackson    Assistant City Clerk, Brenda J. Reed 
Councilman Marvin Pickett, Sr.   
Councilman Scott Tipton  
 
Main Street Director, Rebecca Davis  Main Street President, Michele Coats 
Main Street Board, Ashley Knecht  Main Street Board, Pat Wiley 
Main Street Board, Debbie Steiner  Main Street Board, Adam Askew 
Main Street Board, Liz Ford   Main Street Board, Herman Smith 
Main Street Board, Seth Randal  Main Street Board, David McCormick 
Main Street Board, Shannon Strunk 
    
Mississippi Power Company, Lori Howard Puzz 
 
Councilwoman Brenda Simkins, Councilman Burt Hill, PRA Board Member Jim Estabrook, and 
PRA Board Member Alice Walker were absent. 

***** 
City Manager Joe Huffman welcomed everyone to the meeting.   

***** 

The first item for discussion was updates from Pascagoula Main Street, Pascagoula 

Redevelopment Authority, and the City of Pascagoula.  Michele Coats gave the Main Street 



2 
 

update. Jen Dearman presented the PRA update followed by an update on the City of 

Pascagoula by Joe Huffman.   

***** 

Liz Ford left the meeting at 8:45AM. 

***** 

 A discussion was held on collaboration versus cooperation.  

  

Councilman David Tadlock joined the meeting at 9:09AM.  

***** 

The next item for discussion was the presentation of ideas and solicitation of feedback 

from each group. Michelle Coats gave the Main Street update.   Jen Dearman presented the 

PRA update followed by an update on the City of Pascagoula by Joe Huffman.  

*****  

Herman Smith left the meeting at 9:39AM.   

Councilman Marvin Pickett left the meeting at 10:26AM.   

***** 

 A discussion was held on future collaborative efforts between the groups.   

***** 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Sudduth moved to adjourn 
the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Grimes.   

All present Board members were in favor.  
 

The meeting ended at 10:50 AM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



     



Agenda Number:  

4-5-2016

Community and Economic Development

LaLinda Grace 228-938-2352

Pascagoula Mayor's Youth Council Minutes

Acknowledge minutes of PMYC 3-14-2016 meeting.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
8.



  

General Meeting Minutes 
Conference Room  

Jackson County Chamber of Commerce 
Monday | February 22, 2016 | 4:00 PM 

 
Members Present: Will Baumhauer, Anna Grant Godfrey, Abby Raworth, Bailey Bass, Hunter Blades, 
Meha Patel, Madison Scott, Caydn Perez, Caroline Ko, Mitchell Latady, Makenzie Sanabria, Clare 
Baumhauer, Summer Beall, Joey Hasbrouck, Victoria Miller, and Gabi Wells.   
 
Members Absent: Annie Perkins, Cale Garlich, Alexis Harbin, Kris Rinza, and Caroline Foster. 
 
Ex Officio: LaLinda Grace, Economic Development Specialist 
     
A. Council Mayor Joey, called the meeting to order at 4:00 PM, welcomed everyone, and led the Pledge 

of Allegiance.   
 

B. The first item for consideration was the minutes from the February 22, 2016, meeting. Gabi made a 
motion to approve the minutes. The motion was seconded by Victoria.  All present members were in 
favor.  

 

C. The next item for discussion was announcements and kudos.   

 Congratulations to Alexis who was named 1st runner up and Makenzie as 2nd runner up  
in the Distinguished Young Women (DYW) competition Saturday, February 27, 2016. 

 Joey placed 1st in the Chemistry Category at the Regional Science Fair and received the 
Naval Science Award. 

 Annie is serving as junior page for Senator Michael Watson March 14th – 18th.   

 Caroline F. was crowned Queen Esprit during the annual Jeune Esprit Ball. 

 Makenzie placed 1st in the Group Exhibit Category at the State National History Day. 

 Victoria was accepted into the Honors College at UAB. 

 Gabi and Joey were accepted into the Honors College at University of Mississippi. 
 

D. The next item for consideration was the attendance policy.  The PMYC policy states that members 
are not to miss more than five meeting unexcused.  Once a Council Member has missed more than 
five meetings, the Council may vote on the member in question’s future on the Council.  Caroline F. 
and Cale have missed five meetings and will receive a verbal warning.  

 
E. The next item for discussion was the Ask the Mayor event.  The program is being finalized.  The 

Fundraising Committee will be in charge of the signup sheet for tea, lemonade, and desserts.  
Several organizations and teachers from PHS are offering extra credit to their students that attend.  



Clare, Caydn and Abby are going to talk with teachers and student organizations at RCHS about 
doing the same.   
 

F. The Council received information in regards to the 2015-16 PMYC Evaluation Survey.  Members are 
required to complete the survey before the March 28th meeting.    
 

G. The Council received information in regards to the 2016-17 PMYC Application.  Applications are due 
to the RCHS and PHS Principal’s office before April 15, 2016.  Applications are available at the PHS or 
RCHS Principal’s office, the Anchor Square office or online at cityofpascagoula.com/myc. 

 

H. The Council received information in regards to the MML 2016 Scholarship Program.  All senior 
Council members are encouraged to apply. The application deadline is May 6, 2016.  

 

I. The next item for discussion was the PMYC Youth of the Year Award. Applications were distributed.  
All members are asked to help spread the word about the award.  Nominations are due no later 
than March 31, 2016.   

 

J. The next item for discussion was Committee updates.  Each Committee Chair provided an update as 
follows: 

 Social: The Committee is working on a Lighthouse Social scheduled for Friday, March 18th 
from 5:30 – 7:00PM at the Round Island Lighthouse.  Invitations and flyers have been 
distributed.  Tours are available with donations pf pre-packaged food items for Backpack 
Buddies.  Meha is checking to see if the PHS Jazz Band would be willing to perform. Abby is 
contacting Lenny’s about a possible donation.  A signup sheet for duties was distributed.  
The rain out location will be at the Pascagoula Environmental Education Trail.  This will be an 
opportunity for members of other mayor’s youth councils and prospective applicants to 
attend a networking event.   

 Communication: The Committee is working on a PMYC brochure and preparing for the 
PMYC Annual Report to City Council. 

 Fundraising: The Committee thanked everyone for participating in the successful Chick-Fil-A 
sandwich fundraiser.  The Raising Cane’s Night fundraiser is still in the works.   

 Leadership: The Committee is working to secure a speaker for the upcoming March 28th 
meeting. 

 Volunteer: The Committee will follow up with the other MYCs on a coast wide service 
project. They will present more information at the next meeting.  PMYC is scheduled to 
serve and host activities at the Hope House March 15th meeting.  A signup sheet for duties 
and responsibilities was distributed.  
    

There being no further business, Caydn made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was 
seconded by Abby.  All present members were in favor.   



     



Agenda Number:  

April 5, 2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Historic Preservation Commission Meeting Minutes - January 27, 2016

Acknowledge minutes as presented.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
9.



 Meeting Minutes  

Historic Preservation Commission  

 

Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 

Location: Community and Economic Development Department 

 

Commission members present: Walter Mansfield, Michele Lee, Marcia Baumhauer, Kevin Hall, Liz Ford, 

and Barry McIlwain 

Commission members excused: Michele Coats, Tommy Wixon, and Carl Megehee 

Ex-officio: Beth Meyer, Grants Administrator 

 

The meeting was called to order by the Commission Chairwoman, Liz Ford, at 12:00 PM. It was 

determined that a quorum was present. The Commission unanimously approved the                        

December 12, 2016, meeting minutes on a motion by Michele Lee and second by Walter Mansfield. 

 

Old Business 

 709 Live Oak Avenue 
o The home was not on the January 4, 2016, Council agenda as expected. It has not 

been determined when the issues regarding the home will appear before the 
Council. There is an $80,000 lien on the property and a potential purchaser 

 3611 Frederic Street 
o The 90 day extension granted at the November 17, 2016 Council meeting will end 

on February 9, 2016. 
 

Projects Update 

 LaPointe-Krebs (LPK) House/LPK Foundation 
o There was a discussion about articles in the Sun Herald and the Mississippi Press 

which covered the progress at the LPK House.  
o University of Southern Mississippi has a grant to test the age of the timbers at the 

LPK House. This will occur at no cost to the LPK Foundation.  
o Liz urged the Commission to visit the LPK house to view the progress. Historically 

accurate materials sourcing, including oyster shells and Spanish moss, have been 
used in restoration.  

o The Museum is progressing, and expected to open in May.  
o The LaPointe Fete will occur on April 1, 2016. 

 Certified Local Government Grant FY2015 – Century Home Program 

o Four applications have been approved. Please reach out to those who have homes 

built 100 years ago. Qualifying homes must be on the National Register or a 

contributing home in a historic district. 

 Update regarding CLG grant application FY2016 

o The Mississippi Department of Archives and History denied the application based 

on the fact that the majority of homes in the Buena Vista District were already on 

the national registry. 

 



 2016 CLG Training  
o The training will occur at the Pascagoula Senior Center on February 24, 2016, from 

1:00 PM through 4:00 PM. The training will be in lieu of the February Commission 
meeting. There was a discussion regarding tentative subject matter and presenters. 

 
New Business 

 Letter of Support LPK Community Heritage Preservation Grant Application Round XI  
o The Commission unanimously approved the support letter on a motion from Marcia 

Baumhauer and second my Walter Mansfield. 

 The National Historic Preservation Commission Conference will occur in July. 
 
Other Business 

 Michele would like the Frederic Street sign corrected at the corner of Live Oak Avenue and 
Frederic Street. Frederic is misspelled with a “k” Frederick. 

 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:00 PM.  

 

Next Meeting Date – March 23, 2016 

 

Notes taken by Beth Meyer 

 

 

 

 



     



Agenda Number:  

April 5, 2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Strategic Plan Steering Committee 167th Meeting Minutes

Acknowledge minutes as presented.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
10.



Strategic Plan Steering Committee – 167th Meeting  
18 February 2016 – page 1 of 3 

 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN STEERING COMMITTEE 

167th Meeting (99th AK) 

Conference Room – Community Development Office  

18 February 2016 

 

 

 

The 167th meeting of the Strategic Plan Steering Committee was called to order by 

Chairman Richard Lucas. 

 

Committee members in attendance:  Chris Wiggins, Terry Bollman, Wayne Rodolfich, 

Doug Adams, and Richard Lucas 

Excused committee members not in attendance: Drew Estabrook, Ann Pickett, Liz Ford, 

and Hanson Horn 

Ex Officios in attendance:  Wes Smith, Planning Commission; Jake Clemens, Resurrection 

High School; Kris Rinza, Pascagoula High School; Alice Walker, Pascagoula 

Redevelopment Authority; Jen Dearman, Community and Economic Development; and 

Kristin Pugh, Baber Strunk Enterprises 

Excused Ex Officios not in attendance: Deborah Frederic, Pascagoula Pride; and Mike 

McElhaney, Recreation Commission 

 

Richard Lucas led a discussion regarding the public meeting at which the 2015 Strategic 

Plan will be presented. The meeting will occur on Thursday, March 10, 2016, from 5:30 

PM to 6:30PM at the Senior Center.  

 

Champion Reports:  

Small Business and Retail Sales – Kristin Pugh 

- Restaurateurs and potential restaurateurs have been contacted. 

- One-half of the subcommittee has been confirmed. 

- The subcommittee will be meeting the first week in March. 

- The subcommittee will be discussing what they need to improve business. 

Infrastructure - Ann Pickett: 

- There are numerous sewer and drainage projects occuring throughout the City. 

Progress is being made towards decreasing flooding in heavily impacted areas.   

- There was a discussion regarding repairs and delays.  

- Tommy Fairchild of the Jackson County Utility Authority addressed the City 

Council Tuesday night regarding  the increased costs that are being passed on to 

the residents and industries of the County. 

 

. 



Strategic Plan Steering Committee – 167th Meeting  
18 February 2016 – page 2 of 3 

Entertainment, Variety, and Cultural – Dr. Chris Wiggins 

- Trent Lott called Chris regarding the auditorium. 

- Wayne Rodolfich discussed preliminary plans and the steps he is taking to move 

the renovation project forward. There is a need for a public meeting. 

- Chris mentioned the Bicentennial of Mississippi Statehood is December 10, 2017. 

Housing – Terry Bollman 

- The Subcommittee met earlier this week. 

- They are looking at available land and have focused on two large vacant 

development parcels. 

- The Subcommittee wants to foster neighborhood associations and City pride to 

improve aesthetics in in ways beyond code enforcement. 

Esthetics and Sense of Pride – Deborah Frederic  

- The Subcommittee is forming and waiting on acceptance from individuals. 

- Report attached. 

Education – K-University and Perception – Wayne Rodolfich 

- Chair back seating at the stadium has been approved, however +/- 300 seats will 

be lost. 

- Athletic programs are thriving. 

- Tuesday night will be award night. 

- The School District will work on their Strategic Plan in the fall. 

Crime Prevention and Safety of Citizens – Doug Adams 

- Doug discussed the false report that Pascagoula is the 3
rd

 most dangerous city in 

Mississippi. The report was published by an alarm company. 

- Law enforcement agencies are not required to report to the FBI, however, 

Pascagoula does. 

- The Police Department is working on active shooter training and is willing to 

speak to groups and conduct training. 

- The Police Department will be participating in the March 19, 2016,  Easter 

Extravaganza hosted by Kiwanis and Junior Auxiliary at the Family Interaction 

Center. 

Youth Report – Kris Rinza and Jake Clemens 

- Kris reported on the Pascagoula Mayors Youth Council (PMYC) event Ask the 

Mayor: A Town Hall Meeting. 

- The City website request for proposals (RFP) deadline in March 8, 2016.  

- The PMYC wants to engage youth for the 2016 Jackson County Heartwalk. 

- Jake is working on ideas to get the students involved in various activities. 

 

Reports from the Commissioners: 

- Planning Commission – Wesley Smith 

o No report. 

- Recreation Commission – Mike McElhaney  

o Report attached. 

- Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority (PRA) – Alice Walker 

o PRA is working with two developers at Riverfront. 

o The deadline for the housing assessment RFP is March 4, 2016. 

 

Community: 

- Main Street – Richard Lucas  

o The Main Street Board Retreat was a good one. 

o Live Oak Art Festival will be May 14, 2016. 



Strategic Plan Steering Committee – 167th Meeting  
18 February 2016 – page 3 of 3 

o The City and Main Street are partnering to host a Pascagoula Possibilities 

Tour on April 2, 2016. 

 

- Mississippi Maritime Museum (MMM) – Terry Bollman 

o The annual meeting and membership drive will be  March 24, 2016, at the 

Hilton Garden Inn with Governor Phil Bryant as the guest speaker. 

o The capital campaign will be getting underway soon. 

 An ad hoc committee has been formed to raise $8 million. 

 This will be an eight month process. 

 A consultant has been hired. 

o The group is close to moving forward on the Band Hall renovation which 

will become the Maritime Museum Activity Center. 

- Jackson County Historical and Genealogy Society (JCHGS) – Chris Wiggins 

o The Fete LaPointe will be Friday, April 1, 2016, at the Hilton Garden Inn. 

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.  The next meeting will be on 

March 17, 2016, with the Strategic Plan Town Hall meeting on the March 10, 2016.  

 

 

Jen Dearman, note taker.  



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

Meeting Date: April 5, 2016   

 
Submitting Department or Individual: Parks & Recreation Department  

 
Contact Name: Darcie Crew  Phone: 228-938-2356 

 

 

Agenda Topic: Advertising the Resources of the City 
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:  
Authorize the Parks and Recreation Dept. to host a Litter Bugs Me Day on April 22, 2016.  Advertise the 
Resources of the City by offering educational packages to Pascagoula School District teachers with "Litter Bugs 
Me" stickers, activity coloring books, car litter bags, garbage bags and gloves at a cost not to exceed $800. 

 
Budgeted Item Yes  No  Source of Funding  General Fund 
 

Contract Required Yes  No    Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required Yes  No    Grant 
 

       Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 11.



     



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date: 4/5/16   

 

Submitting Department or Individual: City Manager  

 

Contact Name: Karen  Phone:       

 

 

Agenda Topic: 2016 MML Annual Conference in Biloxi, MS 

Attach additional information as necessary 

 

Action Requested:  

Approval of conference fees and travel for the City Council to attend the 2016 MML Annual Conference in 

Biloxi,MS on June 27-29,2016. 

 

Budgeted Item Yes  No  Source of Funding  General Fund 
 

Contract Required Yes  No    Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required Yes  No    Grant 
 

       Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 12.





cwarren
Typewritten Text
13.







     



cwarren
Typewritten Text
14.







     



cwarren
Typewritten Text
15.





Agenda Number:  

04-05-2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Economic Development Internship 2016

Authorize the Director of Community and Economic Development to execute the Economic
Development Internship Agreement with Zoie Mestayer, Resurrection Catholic School.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
16.



 
 

Economic Development Internship 2016 Agreement 
 

Intern:   Zoie Mestayer, Senior, Resurrection Catholic School   
 
Internship Supervisor: Jen Dearman, Director of Community and Economic Development 
   (228) 938-6651, jdearman@cityofpascagoula.com  
 
Work Schedule:  June 13, 2016 through July 31, 2016  
 
Compensation:  There will be no monetary compensation for the internship. 
 
Internship Purpose:  
To provide the City with community and economic development administrative support while providing 
the intern with mentoring and professional development skills. 
 
Internship Duties:   
The Intern agrees to provide general administrative support for community and economic development 
efforts which may include the research, filing, grassroots organization tasks, and grant writing. 
 
City Responsibilities:  
The City of Pascagoula agrees to provide a safe and positive working environment.  The Internship 
Supervisor will monitor and evaluate the Intern’s performance while providing training in areas of 
community and economic development in a municipal government setting.   
 
About the City of Pascagoula 
Pascagoula, Mississippi is located on the southeast border between Mississippi and Alabama.  The 
population in the 2010 census was 22,392.  It is 15 square miles, and is a part of the Gulfport-Biloxi-
Pascagoula Metropolitan Statistical Area.  It is the county seat of Jackson County.  Its major industries 
include shipbuilding, oil, and energy.  It is the home of Mississippi’s largest employer, Huntington-Ingalls 
Shipbuilding, and the Chevron Pascagoula Refinery, which is the world’s largest producer of base oils.   
 
The municipal government provides services to all those who live, work and recreate within the City limits.  
It is administered by a mayor and city council, and has a council-manager form of government.  The 
government organization has 289 employees organized into nine departments.   
 
By signing on the line below, I fully agree to the respective responsibilities as presented above. 
 
_______________________________________          _______________________________________ 
Intern Signature, Date             Internship Supervisor Signature, Date 

mailto:jdearman@cityofpascagoula.com


Agenda Number:  

4/5/2016

Purchasing

Darcie Crew                                                                           228-938-2357

Award of July 4, 2016, Fireworks Display

Council approval to award the 2016 4th of July Fireworks Show to J&M Displays as
recommended by Parks and Recreation, and authorize the City Manager to execute documents.
The RFP tabulation/recommendation sheet is attached.

✔

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text
/Parks and Recreation

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

cwarren
Typewritten Text
17.



rwood
Line



J & M Displays, Inc. 1 

FIREWORKS DISPLAY AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this               day of                                                 , 20           , by 
and between J & M Displays, Inc., an Iowa corporation, having its principal place of business at Yarmouth, Iowa, 
hereinafter referred to as “Seller”, and                                                                                         , hereinafter referred to as 
“Buyer”. 

Seller shall furnish to Buyer one (1) fireworks display, as per the $                                  program submitted and 
accepted by the Buyer, and which by reference is made a part hereof as Exhibit "A".  The display is to take place on the 
evening of                                                , 20           at approximately           :          pm, weather permitting. 

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS: 

1.   Firing of Display (check one of the below options): 

              Seller  agrees  to  furnish  all  necessary  fireworks  display  material  and  personnel  for  a  fireworks  display  in 
accordance with the program approved by the parties.  Seller agrees to comply with all local, state, and federal guidelines 
pertaining to the storing and displaying of fireworks. 

            Buyer waives the services of Seller’s technician.  Buyer is a municipality or has a valid permit from the Bureau of 
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms & Explosives and will be firing the display.  If Buyer shoots the display, proof of liability 
insurance is required as stated in paragraph number five (5), proof of auto insurance (if pyrotechnics will be transported), 
and proof of worker’s compensation insurance coverage is required.  Buyer agrees to comply with all local, state, and 
federal guidelines pertaining to the storing and displaying of fireworks. 

2.   Payment.  The Buyer shall pay to the Seller (check one of the below options): 

             the sum of $                                         as a down payment upon execution of this Agreement.  The balance of 
$                                       shall be due and payable in full within fifteen (15) days after the date of the fireworks display.  A 
service charge of one and one-half percent (1 ½%) per month shall be added to the unpaid balance if the account is not 
paid in full within fifteen (15) days from the date of the show.  If this account remains unpaid and is turned over to a 
collection agency for non-payment, all fees incurred in collecting the balance will be at the Buyer’s expense.  All returned 
checks will be assessed a $30.00 fee. 

  $  in full by   (70 days prior to the event date). 
The Buyer will receive the 8% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display. 

   $   in full by     (30 days prior to event date). 
The Buyer will receive the 5% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display. 

3. Weather Delay/Cancellation.  If Buyer postpones or cancels the fireworks display after the Seller has arrived 
on site and began setting up the display, the Buyer shall pay to the Seller the amount of the shoot fee $                      as 
payment in full for the postponement/cancellation fee. If the Buyer postpones or cancels the display prior to Seller arriving 
on site for set up, there will be no charge for rescheduling. 

4.   Rain Date.   Should inclement weather prevent the firing of the display on the date mentioned herein, the 
parties agree to a mutually convenient rain date of                                                 or another date as agreed to by both 
parties.  The determination to cancel the fireworks display because of inclement weather or unsafe weather conditions 
shall rest within the sole discretion of the Seller.  In the event the Buyer does not choose to reschedule another date or 
cannot agree to a mutually convenient date with the Seller, then the Seller shall be entitled to thirty percent (30%) of the 
contract price for full settlement of this Agreement. 

5. Insurance. (Check one of the below options): 

              Seller agrees to provide, at its expense, general liability insurance coverage, in an amount not less than 
$10,000,000, and within two (2) weeks prior to the date of the fireworks display, shall submit to the Buyer, if requested in 
writing, a certificate of insurance. All entities listed on the certificate of insurance will be deemed an additional insured.  In 
the event of a claim by Buyer, the applicable deductible shall be paid by the Seller. 

6TH April 16

ASF Foundation

19,000

July 4 16 9 00

x

X 0
19,000

30%

July 5, 2016

x

rwood
Rectangle

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text
City of Pascagoula

rwood
Cross-Out

rwood
Typewritten Text
forty-five (45)

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text
forty-five (45)

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Line



J & M Displays, Inc. 2 

The Seller agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and its agents, and employees from and 
against all claims, costs, judgments, damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees that may or shall arise 
from the performance of the fireworks by the Buyer.  The Buyer agrees to give the Seller prompt notice of any claims or 
demands and to cooperate with the Seller or its successors in interest or assigns, if any, in the defense of any such 
claims and/or demands. 

   Buyer agrees to provide, at its expense, general liability insurance coverage with a rating by AM  Best of A VIII or 
higher, in an amount not less than $5,000,000, and within two (2) weeks prior to the date of the fireworks display, 
shall submit to the Seller a certificate of insurance. All entities listed on the certificate of insurance will be deemed an 
additional insured. Any charge incurred from the insurance provider for additional insurance after insurance application 
has been sent in, shall be the responsibility of the Buyer. In the event of a claim by Seller, the applicable deductible shall 
be paid by the Buyer. 

The Buyer agrees to hold the Seller harmless and defend Seller from any and all claims brought against the 
Seller by employees or sponsors of the Buyer for any and all acts of the Buyer relating to the event for which the 
fireworks is performed. 

6. Buyer agrees to provide: 

(a) sufficient area for the display, including a minimum spectator set back as determined by Seller. 

(b) protection of the display area by roping off or similar facility. 

(c) adequate police protection to prevent spectators from entering display area. 

(d) dry, clean sand, if needed, for firing. 

(e) inspection and cleanup of fireworks debris in the fallout zone of the shoot site at first light the morning 
following the display for anything that may have been missed at the night search, performed by seller. 

(f) necessary local permits. 

7.  No representation of affirmation of fact, including but not limited to statement regarding capacity, suitability for 
use, or performance of equipment or products shall be, or deemed to be a warranty by the Seller for any purpose, nor 
give rise to any liability or obligation of the Seller whatsoever, except for acts of Seller’s negligence as above stated. 

8.  It is further understood and agreed that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted to mean a 
partnership.  Both parties hereto being responsible for their separate and individual debts and obligations, and neither 
party shall be responsible for any agreements not stipulated in this Agreement. 

9.  The parties hereto do mutually and severally guarantee terms, conditions, and payments of this Agreement. 
This document shall be binding upon the parties, themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written. 

BY:     
J & M Displays, Inc. 

BY:     

SELLER BUYER 

Please include the DISPLAY INFORMATION form with this Agreement so your order is processed accurately. 

All items vill be clarified at the site visit

Seller must obtain permits from Coast Guard.

Charles McKinley



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  April 5, 2016      

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  Parks & Recreation Dept.   

 
Contact Name:  Darcie Crew    Phone:  228‐938‐2356 

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Amended No. 1 to Agreement for BB Jennings Boardwalk Project
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   
Approve amendment No. 1 to the agreement for professional services with Compton Engineering for the BB 
Jennings Boardwalk and Parking Lot  Improvement project.    The amendment  increases  the agreement  from 
$19,000 to $21,195 for a total increase of $2,195. The amendment allows Compton Engineering to complete 
deed research to resolve property ownership over the parking lot, driveway and a portion of the boardwalk 
area. 

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 18.





   

COMPTON ENGINEERING, INC. Amendment #1 to Agreement for Professional Services 
215-073 1 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF PASCAGOULA 

AND 

COMPTON ENGINEERING, INC. 

 

 THIS IS AN AMENDMENT made on     TO THE AGREEMENT 

made on December 1, 2015, between the CITY OF PASCAGOULA, PO Drawer 908, 

Pascagoula, Mississippi, 39568-0908 (OWNER), and COMPTON ENGINEERING, INC., PO 

Box 686, 1706 Covent Avenue, Pascagoula, Mississippi, 39568 (ENGINEER). 

 OWNER and ENGINEER, agree with respect to the performance of professional 

engineering services by ENGINEER with respect to the City of Pascagoula BB Jennings Park 

Boardwalk project and the payment for these services by OWNER as set forth herein for 

additional surveying services and payment in accordance with terms and conditions included in 

the contract in place and the following amendments: 

 
EXHIBIT B 

SCOPE OF ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING PHASE SERVICES 
 
1.0 Basic Services 

 

1.4  A limited boundary survey will be provided at the parking lot locating the 

western-most property line at the parking lot entrance and continuing south to 

Telephone Road and east to the western edge of the brush line at the existing 

drainage way. Topographic survey will also be limited to the parking lot and area 

of new overlook. Additional services to include deed research to resolve property 

ownership of the parking lot, drive, and a portion of the board walk. Property 

corners will be set and we will provide a written description and plat to be filed.  

 
EXHIBIT C 

PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER 
 
1.1 Basic Services. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Basic Services rendered under Section 1, as 

supplemented by Exhibit B, “Scope of Professional Phase Services,” the following fees totaling 

$19,000.00: 

 





Agenda Number:  

April 5, 2016

Engineering

Jaci Turner 938-6726

Task Order with Compton Engineering for Market Street Redevelopment -
Area 1 - Beach Boulevard to Parsley Avenue

Approve the attached Task Order with Compton Engineering to complete design and
construction administration services associated with the Market Street Redevelopment plan,
Area 1, which covers Beach Boulevard to Parsley Avenue. This project is programmed to be
funded with bond proceeds. Authorize the City Manager to execute related documents.

✔

✔

✔

cwarren
Typewritten Text
19.



COMPTON ENGINEERING, INC. 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

213-008.052: 
 

Page 1 of 2 

TASK ORDER No. 052 
CITY OF PASCAGOULA GENERAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
 
PROJECT NAME: Market Street Improvements AREA 1 – Beach Boulevard to  
Parsley Avenue                                                                
 
Owner to identify desired services: 
 

 Concept Plan   Conceptual Opinion of Cost  Phase I ESA 
 Phase II ESA   Phase III ESA    Wetlands Delineation 
 Wetlands Permitting  Cultural Resource Survey   SWPPP Preparation 
 Topographic Survey  Boundary Survey    Preliminary Plat 
 Final Plat    Elevation Certificate   Easement/ROW Exhibits 
 Civil Design    Structural Design    Electrical Design 
 Mechanical Design   Architectural Design   Landscape Architecture 
 Contract Docs for Bid  Contract Docs for quote   Design Documents only 
 Bid Administration   Construction Admin.   RPR Services 
 Record Drawings   O&M Manuals    Warranty Inspection 
 Study / Report   Grant Application Preparation  Other (described below) 

 
Owner’s General Description of Project: The consultant shall provide design and construction 
documents for the approved conceptual design of Market Street Improvements Area 1 from 
Beach Boulevard to a point no greater than 100’ north of Parsley Avenue.    
 
DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK, SCHEDULE AND COST: 
Consultant to provide detailed proposed scope of work, with any applicable associated 
milestones, dates, and costs associated with phases of work: 
 
Proposed Scope of Work:  
 

1. Compton Engineering (CE) shall provide design services to prepare construction 
documents to acquire bids one time for a contractor to construct the proposed 
improvements as shown on the attached Exhibit A “Proposed Market Street 
Improvements – Beach Boulevard to Parsley Avenue”.  

2. CE shall prepare a SWPPP in accordance with local codes for the proposed 
improvements as on the attached Exhibit A. 

3. CE shall prepare and submit applications to permit improvements to the City water and 
sewer infrastructure, to MS Department of Health, MS Department of Environmental 
Quality, and Jackson County Utility Authority. 

4. CE shall provide services during construction to include bid administration, construction 
administration, and construction observation for the construction of the proposed 
improvements as shown on the attached Exhibit A.  

  
Timeline and Milestones: CE will begin work within 30 days of receipt of an executed 
agreement. CE will complete the services within 120 days thereafter. 
  



COMPTON ENGINEERING, INC. 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

213-008.052: 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Cost and Method of Compensation: 
 

1. CE shall provide design services as described in Item 1 above for a lump sum fee based 
on a percentage of the construction cost from the fee curve 40/log C, whereas “C” is the 
construction cost. The estimated fee is $152,377.43 based on an estimated cost of 
construction of $2,467,516.00, less fee for Concept/Phasing Plan under Task Order 27. 
The actual fee shall be adjusted based on the actual bid price for the proposed 
improvements at the time the contract is awarded by issuing an amendment to this 
agreement. 

2. CE shall prepare a SWPPP as described in Item 2 above for a lump price of $1,500.00. 
3. CE shall prepare and submit applications for permitting as described in Item 3 above for 

a lump sum of $2,500.00 
4. CE shall provide services during construction as described in Item 4 above on a time 

and material basis not to exceed $96,125.00 based on CE’s hourly rates in the general 
services agreement. The services during construction shall be based on a time 
allocation of 40 hours PM time for bid administration, 8 hours per day RPR time for 
construction observation for 5 out of 7 days a week for a 120 calendar day construction 
contract, 0.5 hours per day PM time for construction administration for 5 out of 7 days a 
week for a 210 calendar day construction contract, and 30 hours PM time for project 
close-out. The actual fee shall be adjusted based on the actual length of the calendar 
day contract for the proposed improvements at the time the contract is awarded by 
issuing an amendment to this agreement. 
 

 
 By initialing here, the Consultant agrees that the above described scope of work 

represents a complete scope of work consistent with the goals of the Owner and no 
additional tasks will be needed to accomplish the intent. 

 
 
It is agreed that the above described work will be completed in accordance with the provisions 
of the General Services Consulting Contract dated February 4, 2015. 
 
 
CITY OF PASCAGOULA:    CONSULTANT: 
 
BY:       BY:       
 
DATE:       DATE:       



PR
EP

A
R
ED

 B
Y

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 M
A

R
K

E
T 

S
TR

E
E

T 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

TS
B

E
A

C
H

 B
O

U
LE

V
A

R
D

 T
O

 P
A

R
S

LE
Y

 A
V

E
N

U
E

1 
- 

B
E

A
C

H
 B

O
U

LE
V

A
R

D
 T

O
 P

A
R

S
LE

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

D
EC

EM
B
ER

 2
01

5

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A



EXHIBIT B 
Proposed Market Street Improvements 

AREA 1 Beach Boulevard to Parsley Avenue 

Conceptual Opinion of Cost

Item Description  Amount 

1 SWPPP  $                       1,500 

2 Utility Permits (MDEQ, MDOH, and JCUA)  $                       2,500 

3 Professional Design Services 154,406$                   

4 Professional Design Services - Concept/Phasing Plan under Separate Contract (2,028.57)$                 

5 Services During Construction 96,125$                     

Time allocation of 8 hours per day 
RPR & 0.5 hours per day PM for 5 
days a week for the above estimated 
project duration with 40 hours PM 
time for bid administration and 30 
hours PM time for project close out 

Lump Sum

40/(log of the Construction Cost)%

Note: The above probable budget estimate was estimated under Task Order 27 (CE Project No. 213-008.027) and is based on conceptaul designs 
prepared over aerials. This estimate is subject to change as the design progresses and is incorporated into the surveyed conditions.

ESTIMATED PROJECT DURATION BASED ON CONCEPTUAL SCOPE 
Estimated Project Duration 210 

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION & PROFESSIONAL SERVICES COST WITH CONTINGENCY:  $                                                  2,992,021 

Note: The above costs are considered order of magnitude and have been prepared without design considerations. The cost may vary minus 25 to plus 
25 percent.

Lump Sum

PROBABLE BUDGET ESTIMATE FOR CONSTRUCTION COST
Estimated Construction Cost:  $                                                  2,467,516 

Time & Material NTE

10% CONTINGENCY:  $                                                     272,002 

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES COST:  $                                                     252,503 

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST & PROFESSIONAL SERVICES COST:  $                                                  2,720,019 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES COST

Unit

COMPTON ENGINEEERING, INC.
213-008.052

CONCEPTUAL OPINION OF COST



     



Agenda Number:  

4/5/2016

Finance

Bobby Parker 938-6716

Contract with Government Capital Corporation for the financing of software 
needed for the Police Department.

Council approval of the attached contract and authorize the City Manager to execute related 
documents.

✔

cwarren
Typewritten Text
20.



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 

1 

TECHNOLOGY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
THIS TECHNOLOGY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT No.7329 (hereafter referred to as "Agreement") dated as of April 5, 2016, by 
and between Government Capital Corporation, a Texas corporation (herein referred to as "Lessor"), and City of Pascagoula, a 
political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi (hereinafter referred to as "Lessee"). 
WITNESSETH: In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Term and Payments.  Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor those software licenses and 
related computers and appurtenances, if applicable, described in Exhibit A hereto (hereinafter, with all replacement parts, 
substitutions, proceeds, increases, additions, accessions, repairs and accessories incorporated therein or affixed thereto, referred to 
as the "Technology Assets") for the amounts to be paid in the sums (the "Lease Payments") and on the dates (the "Lease Payment 
Dates") set forth in Exhibit B hereto.  Except as specifically provided in Section 2 hereof, the obligation of the Lessee to make the 
Lease Payments called for in Exhibit B hereto shall be absolute and unconditional in all events and shall not be subject to any set-off, 
defense, counterclaim or recoupment for any reason. The term of the lease hereunder shall commence upon the dated date of the 
lease and shall continue until the end of the Lessee's current fiscal period and thereafter for such additional fiscal periods as are 
necessary to complete the anticipated total lease term as set forth in Exhibit B, unless earlier terminated as provided herein. 

2. Renewal and Non-Appropriation.  Lessee agrees that it will take all necessary steps and make timely requests for the 
appropriation of funds to make all Lease Payments called for under Exhibit B, and use its best efforts and take all steps to cause such 
appropriations to be made.  In the event that (i) funds for the succeeding fiscal period cannot be obtained, (ii)Lessee has exhausted 
all legally available means for making payment called for under this Agreement, (iii) Lessee has invoked and diligently pursued all 
legal procedures by which payment called for under this agreement may be made, (iv) such failure to obtain funds has not resulted 
from any act or failure to act of Lessee, (v) Lessee has not acquired, and has no intent to acquire during the subsequent fiscal 
period, items of property having functions similar to those of the Technology Assets or which provide similar benefits to Lessee, and 
(vi) no funds have been appropriated for the acquisition of such property, Lessee may terminate this Agreement at the end of any 
fiscal period during the payment schedule set forth in Exhibit B by giving notice to Lessor or its successors at least sixty (60) days 
prior to the first day of such fiscal period for which appropriations cannot be made.  Such failure to obtain proper appropriation and 
approval of the full amount of funds necessary to make required payments hereunder during any fiscal period subsequent to the 
current fiscal period shall terminate all Lessee's right, title and interest in and obligations under this Agreement and to all the 
Technology Assets, effective on the last day of the last fiscal period for which appropriation or approval was properly obtained.  

3. Taxes.  In addition to the Lease Payments to be made pursuant to Section 1 hereof, Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold 
Lessor harmless from and against and to pay Lessor, as additional rent, on demand, an amount equal to all licenses, assessments, 
sales, use, real or personal property, gross receipts or other taxes, levies, imposts, duties or charges, if any, together with any 
penalties, fines, or interest thereon imposed against or on Lessor, Lessee or the Technology Assets by any governmental authority 
upon or with respect to the Technology Assets or the purchase, ownership, rental, possession, operation, return or sale of, or receipt 
of payments for, the Technology Assets, except any Federal or state income taxes, if any, payable by Lessor.  Lessee may contest 
any such taxes prior to payment provided such contest does not involve any risk of sale, forfeiture or loss of the Technology Assets 
or any interest therein. 

4. Lessee’s Covenants and Representations.  Lessee covenants and represents as follows: 
 

(a)  Lessee represents, and will provide an opinion of its counsel to the effect that, it has full power and authority to 
enter into this Agreement which has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Lessee and is a valid and binding obligation of 
Lessee enforceable in accordance with its terms, and all requirements for execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement 
have been, or will be, complied with in a timely manner; 

(b)  All Payments hereunder have been, and will be, duly authorized and paid when due out of funds then on hand and 
legally available for such purposes;  Lessee will, to the extent permitted by State law and other terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, include in its budget for each successive fiscal period during the term of this Agreement a sufficient amount to permit 
Lessee to discharge all of its obligations hereunder, and Lessee has budgeted and available for the current fiscal period sufficient 
funds to comply with its obligations hereunder; 

(c)  There are no pending or threatened lawsuits or administrative or other proceedings contesting the authority for, 
authorization of performance of, or expenditure of funds pursuant to, this Agreement; 

(d)  Information supplied and statements made by Lessee in any financial statement or current budget prior 
to or contemporaneously with the Agreement are true and correct; 

(e)  Lessee has an immediate need for, and expects to make immediate use of, substantially the Technology Assets, 
which need is not temporary or expected to diminish in the foreseeable future; specifically Lessee will not give priority or parity 
in the appropriation of funds for the acquisition or use of any additional property for purposes or functions similar to those of 
the Technology Assets. 

(f)  There are no circumstances presently affecting the Lessee that could reasonably be expected to alter its 
foreseeable need for the Technology Assets or adversely affect its ability or willingness to budget funds for the payment of 
sums due hereunder and; 

(g)  Lessee's right to terminate this Agreement as specified in Section 2 hereof was not an independently 
bargained for consideration, but was included solely for the purpose of complying with the requirements of the laws of the State in 
which Lessee is located. 

(h)  No lease, rental agreement, lease-purchase agreement, payment agreement or contract for purchase to which 
Lessee has been a party at any time during the past ten (10) years has been terminated by Lessee as a result of insufficient 
funds being appropriated in any Fiscal Year.  No event has occurred which would constitute an event of default under any debt, 
revenue bond or obligation which Lessee has issued during the past ten (10) years. 
  



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 

2 

(i)  Lessee will pay the Lease Payment Due by check, wire transfer, or ACH only 
5. Use and Licenses.  Lessee shall pay and discharge all operating expenses and shall cause the Technology Assets to be 

operated by competent persons only.  Lessee shall use the Technology Assets only for its proper purposes and will not install, 
use, operate or maintain the Technology Assets improperly, carelessly, or in violation of any applicable law, ordinance, rule or 
regulation of any governmental authority, or in a manner contrary to the nature of the Technology Assets or the use 
contemplated by its manufacturer, or in the case of any software portion of any Technology Assets, in a manner contrary to any 
license agreement applicable to said software.  Lessee shall keep the property at the location stated on the certificate of 
Acceptance executed by Lessee upon delivery of the Technology Assets until Lessor, in writing, permits its removal.  The 
Technology Assets shall be used solely in the conduct of the Lessee's operations.  Lessee shall obtain, at its expense, all 
registrations, permits and licenses, if any, required by law for the installation and operation of the Technology Assets. 

6. Maintenance.  Lessor shall have no obligation of any nature to provide maintenance to or service regarding the Technology 
Assets.  Lessee shall be solely responsible for the providing of all such maintenance and service, to the extent applicable, at Lessee's 
sole cost and expense.  

7. Alterations. 
(a)  Lessee may, at its own expense, install or place in or on, or attach or affix to, the Technology Assets 

such equipment or accessories as may be necessary or convenient to use the Technology Assets for its intended purposes 
provided that such equipment or accessories do not impair the value or utility of the Technology Assets.  All such equipment and 
accessories shall be removed by Lessee upon termination of this Agreement, provided that any resulting damage shall be 
repaired at Lessee's expense.  Any such equipment or accessories not removed shall become the property of Lessor. 

(b)  Without the written consent of Lessor, Lessee shall not make any other alterations, modifications or 
improvements to the Technology Assets except as required or permitted hereunder, or as otherwise permitted pursuant to 
any applicable software licensing agreement.  Any other alterations, modifications or improvements to the Technology 
Assets shall immediately become part of the Technology Assets, subject to the provisions hereof.  Without the prior written 
consent of Lessor, Lessee shall not affix or attach any of the Technology Assets to any real property.  The Technology Assets 
shall remain personal property regardless of whether it becomes affixed or attached to real property or permanently rests 
upon any real property or any improvement thereon. 

8. Liens.  Lessee shall not directly or indirectly create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any mortgage, security interest, 
pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim on or with respect to the Technology Assets, title thereto or any interest therein, except 
the respective rights of Lessor and Lessee hereunder. 

9. Damage to or Destruction of Technology Assets.  Lessee shall bear the entire risk of loss, damage, theft or destruction 
of the Technology Assets from any and every cause whatsoever, and no loss, damage, destruction or other event shall release 
Lessee from the obligation to pay the full amount of the rental payments or from any other obligation under this Agreement.  In the 
event of damage to any item of the Technology Assets, Lessee will immediately place the same in good repair, with the proceeds of 
any insurance recovery applied to the cost of such repair.  If Lessor determines that any item of Technology Assets is lost, stolen, 
destroyed or damaged beyond repair, Lessee, at the option of Lessee, will either (a) replace the same with like property in good 
repair or (b) on the next Lease Payment Date, pay Lessor (i) all amounts then owed by Lessee to Lessor under this Agreement, 
including the Lease Payment due on such date, and (ii) an amount equal to the applicable Early Redemption Value set forth in Exhibit 
B. 

10. Insurance.  Lessor shall have no obligation of any nature to provide any insurance in connection with Lessee's use of the 
Technology Assets.  Lessee shall be solely responsible for the providing of all such insurance at Lessee's sole cost and expense, or, 
Lessee may self insure the Technology Assets upon the express written consent and approval of Lessor. 

11. Lessee Negligence.  Lessee assumes all risks and liabilities, whether or not covered by insurance, for loss or damage to 
the Property and for injury to or death of any person or damage to any property, whether such injury or death be with respect to 
agents or employees of Lessee or of third parties, and whether such property damage be to Lessee’s property or the property of 
others, which is proximately caused by the negligent conduct of Lessee, its officers, employees and agents.  Lessee hereby assumes 
responsibility for and agrees to reimburse Lessor for all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims, actions, costs and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) of whatsoever kind and nature, imposed on, incurred by or asserted against Lessor 
that in any way relate to or arise out of a claim, suit or proceeding based in whole or in part upon the negligent conduct of Lessee, 
its officers, employees and agents, to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

12. No Warranty.  ALL WARRANTIES, PROMISES AND SERVICE AGREEMENTS, IF ANY, RELATING TO THE PROPERTY THAT THE 
MANUFACTURERS OR THE PARTY WHO SUPPLIED THE PROPERTY TO LESSOR (THE “VENDOR”) HAVE MADE TO LESSOR IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR AS PART OF THE CONTRACT BY WHICH LESSOR ACQUIRED THE PROPERTY ARE HEREBY ASSIGNED TO 
LESSEE.  Lessee may communicate with Vendor and receive an accurate and complete statement of all such warranties, promises 
and service agreements, if any.  All claims or actions on any warranty so assigned shall be made or prosecuted by Lessee, at its sole 
expense, upon prior written notice to Lessor.  Lessor may, but shall have no obligation whatsoever to participate in such claim or 
action on such warranty, at Lessor’s expense.  Any recovery under such a warranty shall be made payable jointly to Lessee and 
Lessor.  Lessee acknowledges that Lessee has selected the Vendor and that Lessee has directed Lessor to acquire the Property from 
Vendor in connection with this Agreement. Lessee further acknowledges that this Agreement is a “Finance Lease” within the meaning 
of the Uniform Commercial Code and that Lessee is entitled to the Vendor’s warranties and promises described above, if any.  
LESSOR HAS MADE AND MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND ASSUMES NO OBLIGATION WITH 
RESPECT TO THE TITLE, MERCHANTABILITY, CONDITION, QUALITY OR FITNESS OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A FOR 
ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR THE CONFORMITY OF THE PROPERTY TO ANY SPECIFICATION OR PURCHASE ORDER, OR AS TO THE 
PROPERTY’S DESIGN, DELIVERY, INSTALLATION OR OPERATION.  All such risks shall be borne by Lessee without in any way 
excusing Lessee from its obligations under this Agreement, and Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any damages on account of 
such risks. 

13. Early Redemption.  Provided Lessee has complied with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Lessee shall have the 
right to pre-pay the scheduled lease payments upon the payment of the Early Redemption Value set forth on Exhibit B by giving 
written notice to Lessor not less than sixty (60) days prior to the date specified in Exhibit B for the exercise of such early redemption 
right; provided that upon Lessee's timely payment of all Lease Payments specified in Exhibit B, Lessee shall be deemed to have paid 



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 

3 

in full the Early Redemption Value and shall be deemed to have acquired all of Lessor's right, title and interest in and to the 
Technology Assets, free of any lien, encumbrance or security interest except such liens,  encumbrances or security interest as may 
be created, or permitted and not discharged, by Lessee but without other warranties.  Payment of the applicable Early Redemption 
Value shall occur on the applicable Lease Payment Date specified in Exhibit B hereto, at which time Lessor shall, unless not required 
hereunder, deliver to Lessee a quitclaim bill of sale transferring Lessor's interest in the Technology Assets to Lessee free from any 
lien, encumbrance or security interest except such as may be created, or permitted and not discharged, by Lessee but without other 
warranties.  Upon Lessee's actual payment of the Early Redemption Value and Lessor's actual or constructive delivery of a quitclaim 
bill of sale covering the Technology Assets, this Agreement shall terminate except as to obligations or liabilities accruing hereunder 
prior to such termination. 

14. Default and Lessor's Remedies. 
(a)  The occurrence of one or more of the following events shall constitute an Event of Default, whether occurring 

voluntarily or involuntarily, by operation of law or pursuant to any order of any court or governmental agency: 
(1)  Lessee fails to make any payment hereunder when due or within ten (10) days thereafter; 
(2)  Lessee fails to comply with any other covenant, condition or agreement of Lessee hereunder for a period of the 

ten (10) days after notice thereof; 
(3)  Any representation or warranty made by Lessee hereunder shall be untrue in any material respect as of the 

date made; 
(4)  Lessee makes, permits or suffers any unauthorized assignment, transfer or other disposition of this Agreement 

or any interest herein, or any part of the Technology Assets or any interest therein; or 
(5)  Lessee becomes insolvent; or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature; or applies for, 

consents to or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or custodian for the Lessee or a substantial part of its 
property; or, in the absence of such application, consent or acquiescence, a trustee, receiver or custodian is appointed for 
Lessee or a substantial part of its property and is not discharged within sixty (60) days; or any bankruptcy, reorganization, 
debt arrangement, moratorium, or any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency law, or any dissolution or liquidation 
proceeding is instituted by or against Lessee and, if instituted against Lessee, is consented to or acquiesced in by Lessee or 
is not dismissed within sixty (60) days. 

(b)  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default specified herein, Lessor may, at its sole discretion, exercise any or 
all of the following remedies: 

(1) Enforce this Agreement by appropriate action to collect amounts due or to become due hereunder, by 
acceleration of otherwise, or to cause Lessee to perform its other obligations hereunder in which event Lessee shall be 
liable for all costs and expenses incurred by Lessor; 

(2)  Cause all license agreements pertaining to the Technology Assets to be terminated and revoked, thereby 
preventing and prohibiting Lessee's continued use of the Technology Assets; 

(3)  Repossess and re-take possession, ownership and control of any and all computers, tangible personal 
property and related equipment and furnishings that comprise a portion of the Technology Assets and liquidate same 
and apply the liquidation proceeds, net costs of liquidation, against sums otherwise owing by Lessee to Lessor 
hereunder; or 

(4)  Pursue and exercise any other remedy available at law or in equity, in which event Lessee shall be liable for 
any and all costs and expenses incurred by Lessor in connection therewith.  "Costs and expenses", as that term is used 
in this Section 14, shall mean, to the extent allowed by law:  (i) reasonable attorneys' fees if this Agreement is 
referred for collection to an attorney not a salaried employee of Lessor or the holder of this Agreement;   (ii) court 
costs and disbursements including such costs in the event of any action necessary to secure possession of the 
Technology Assets; and (iii) actual and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with any 
repossession or foreclosure, including costs of storing, reconditioning and reselling the Technology Assets, subject to 
the standards of good faith and commercial reasonableness set by the applicable Uniform Commercial Code.  Lessee 
waives all rights under all exemption laws. 

(5)  Under no circumstances shall Lessee be liable under this subsection 14 (b) for any amount in excess of the 
sum appropriated pursuant to Section 1 hereof for the previous and current fiscal years, less all amounts  previously 
due and paid during such previous and current fiscal years from amounts so appropriated. 

15. Assignment.  Without Lessor's prior written consent, Lessee will not either (i) assign, transfer, pledge, hypothecate, 
grant any security interest in or otherwise dispose of this Agreement or the Technology Assets or any interest in this 
Agreement or the Technology Assets; or (ii) sublet or lend the Technology Assets or permit it to be used by anyone other than 
Lessee or Lessee's employees. Lessor may assign its rights, title and interest in and to this Agreement, the Technology Assets 
and any other documents executed with respect to this Agreement and/or grant or assign a security interest in this Agreement 
and the Technology Assets, in whole or in part. Any such assignees shall have all of the rights of Lessor under this Agreement.  
Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the parties hereto. No assignment or reassignment of any of Lessor's rights, title or interest in this 
Agreement or the Technology Assets shall be effective with regard to Lessee unless and until Lessee shall have received a copy 
of the document by which the assignment or reassignment is made, disclosing the name and address of such assignee.  No 
further action will be required by Lessor or by Lessee to evidence the assignment, but Lessee will acknowledge receipt of such 
assignments in writing if so required.  During the term of this Agreement, Lessee shall keep a complete and accurate record of all 
such assignments in form necessary to comply with the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, Section 149 (a), and the 
regulations, proposed or existing, from time to time promulgated thereunder. 

16. Personal Property.  Lessee agrees and acknowledges that any and all computers, tangible personal property and 
related equipment and furnishings that comprise a portion of the Technology Assets are hereby deemed and considered to 
comprise personal property and Lessee does hereby grant to Lessor a security interest in and to said property and authorizes 
and empowers the Lessor with the right to file of record financing statements so as to perfect the security interest grant 
evidenced hereby, along with appropriate continuation statements. 



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 

4 

17. Title to Technology Assets.  Upon its acceptance of the Technology Assets, Lessee shall be deemed and considered to be 
the owner of all equipment and assets that comprise the Technology Assets, and shall be deemed to be the license holder of all 
software and related licenses that comprise the Technology Assets during the term of this Agreement; provided, however, that (i) 
upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and during the continuation thereof, or (ii) upon the termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 2, hereof, then title to the equipment and assets that comprise the Technology Assets shall be reverted 
immediately to and in favor of Lessor absent any further action required by either party hereto, and free and clear of any right, title 
or interest of Lessee therein, unless Lessor elects otherwise, and all license agreements related to the software that comprises the 
Technology Assets shall immediately be terminated, and Lessee shall have no further right to use or access same.  

18. Lessor's Right to Perform for Lessee.  If Lessee fails to make any payment or perform or comply with any of its 
covenants or obligations hereunder, Lessor may, but shall not be required to, make such payment or perform or comply with such 
covenants and obligations on behalf of Lessee, and the amount of any such payment and the expenses (including but not limited to 
reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by Lessor in performing or complying with such covenants and obligations, as the case may be, 
together with interest thereon at the highest lawful rate, shall be payable by Lessee upon demand. 

19. Interest on Default.  If Lessee fails to pay any Lease Payment specified in Section 1 hereof within ten (10) days after the 
due date thereof, Lessee shall pay to Lessor interest on such delinquent payment from the due date until paid at the highest lawful 
rate. 

20. Notices.  Any notices to be given or to be served upon any party hereto in connection with this Agreement must be in 
writing and may be given by certified or registered mail, and shall be deemed to have been given and received forty-eight (48) hours 
after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail, and if given 
otherwise shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to and received by the party to whom it is addressed.  Such notice 
shall be given to the parties at their respective addresses designated on the signature page of this Agreement or at such other 
address as either party may hereafter designate. 

21. Security Interest.  As security for Lessee's covenants and obligations hereunder, Lessee hereby grants to Lessor, and its 
successors, a security interest in the Technology Assets, all accessions thereto and proceeds therefrom, and, in addition to Lessor's 
rights hereunder, all of the rights and benefits of a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect from time to time 
hereafter in the State in which the Technology Assets is located or any other State which may have jurisdiction over the Technology 
Assets.  Lessee agrees to execute, acknowledge and deliver to Lessor in recordable form upon request financing statements or any 
other instruments with respect to the Technology Assets or this Agreement considered necessary or desirable by Lessor to perfect 
and continue the security interest granted herein in accordance with the laws of the applicable jurisdiction.  Lessee hereby authorizes 
Lessor or its agent/assigns to sign and execute on its behalf, any and all necessary UCC-1 forms to perfect the Purchase Money 
Security interest herein granted to Lessor. 

22. Tax Exemption.  Lessee certifies that it does reasonably anticipate that not more than $10,000,000 of "qualified tax-
exempt obligations", as that term is defined in Section 265 (b) 3 (D) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), will be 
issued by it and any subordinate entities during 2016.  Further, Lessee designates this issue as comprising a portion of the $10 
million in aggregate issues to be designated as "qualified tax exempt obligations" eligible for the exception contained in Section 265 
(b) 3 (D) of the Code allowing for an exception to the general rule of the Code which provides for a total disallowance of a deduction 
for interest expense allocable to the carrying of tax exempt obligations. 

23. Continuing Disclosure.  Specifically and without limitation, Lessee agrees to provide audited financial statements, 
prepared by a certified public accountant not later than six (6) months after and as of the end of each fiscal year.  Periodic financial 
statement shall include a combined balance sheet as of the end of each such period, and a combined statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances, from the beginning of the then fiscal year to the end of such period, certified as correct 
by one of Lessee's authorized agents.  If Lessee has subsidiaries, the financial statements required will be provided on a consolidated 
and consolidation basis.   

24. Miscellaneous. 
(a)  Lessee shall, whenever requested, advise Lessor of the exact location and condition of the Technology Assets and 

shall give the Lessor immediate notice of any attachment or other judicial process affecting the Technology Assets, and indemnify 
and save Lessor harmless from any loss or damage caused thereby.  Lessor may, for the purpose of inspection at all reasonable 
times enter upon any job, building or place where the Technology Assets and the books and records of the Lessee with respect 
thereto are located. 

(b)  Lessee agrees to equitably adjust the payments payable under this Agreement if there is a determination for any 
reason that the interest payable pursuant to this Agreement (as incorporated within the schedule of payments) is not excludable 
from income in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, such as to make Lessor and its assigns whole. 

(c)  Time is of the essence.  No covenant or obligations hereunder to be performed by Lessee may be waived except 
by the written consent of Lessor, and a waiver of any such covenant or obligation or a forbearance to invoke any remedy on any 
occasion shall not constitute or be treated as a waiver of such covenant or obligation as to any other occasion and shall not preclude 
Lessor from invoking such remedy at any later time prior to Lessee's cure of the condition giving rise to such remedy.  Lessor's rights 
hereunder are cumulative and not alternative. 

(d)  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of Mississippi. 
Jurisdiction for any and all disputes related to this Agreement shall be with a venue in the County of Jackson. 

(e)  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and shall not be modified, waived, 
discharged, terminated, amended, altered or changed in any respect except by a written document signed by both Lessor and 
Lessee. 

(f)  Any term or provision of this Agreement found to be prohibited by law or unenforceable shall be ineffective to the 
extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without, to the extent reasonably possible, invalidating the remainder of this 
Agreement. 

(g)  The Lessor hereunder shall have the right at any time or times, by notice to Lessee, to designate or appoint any 
person or entity to act as agent or trustee for Lessor for any purposes hereunder. 
  



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 

5 

(h)  All transportation charges shall be borne by Lessee.  Lessee will immediately notify Lessor of any change 
occurring in or to the Technology Assets, of a change in Lessee's address, or in any fact or circumstance warranted or represented by 
Lessee to Lessor, or if any Event of Default occurs. 

(i)  Use of the neuter gender herein is for purposes of convenience only and shall be deemed to mean and include 
the masculine or feminine gender whenever and wherever appropriate. 

(j)  The captions set forth herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not define or limit any of the 
terms or provisions hereof. 

(k)  Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns, where 
permitted by this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the ________day of __________________in the 
year 2016. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Lessor: Government Capital Corporation  
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
345 Miron Drive 
Southlake, TX  76092 

 
 
 
Witness Signature:________________________ 
 
Print Name: _____________________________ 
 
Print Title: ______________________________ 

Lessee: City of Pascagoula  
 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager 
603 Watts Avenue 
Pascagoula, MS 39581 

 
 
 
Witness Signature:________________________ 
 
Print Name: _____________________________ 
 
Print Title: ______________________________ 



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 

6 

EXHIBIT A 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

TECHNOLOGY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT No. 7329 (THE "AGREEMENT") 
BY AND BETWEEN 

Lessor, Government Capital Corporation and Lessee, City of Pascagoula 
Dated as of April 5, 2016 

 
 
   DESCRIPTION 
 

Public Safety Software as follows: 
 

Core Modules – Integrated Hub [Names, Vehicles, Property, Wanted Persons, Message Center] 
 – Sentryx GIS (Geobase) – Imaging – Statelink [NCIC ] – Data Conversion  

CAD – CAD Mapping – E 911 Interface – Rapid Notification (paging, email, texting) – 911 Etherlite 
Barcode Equipment [Datalogic Memor Scanner – Part # 944250005 Datalogic Cradle  
– Part # 94A151111 Datalogic Gryphon USB Scanner – Part # GD4330 Zebra GK420t  
Thermal Transfer Printer - Part # GK42-102210-000 2.25" x 1.25" Thermal Transfer  
Polyester label 2.5" x 1.5" Thermal transfer polyester label. 1.5" inner core, 4.37" outer  
diameter] – Cisco 891 – Drivers License Scanning Hardware [50 devices] 

Records Management System –Law Records [Incident, Case Management, Workflow] 
- Equipment – Evidence Management – Evidence Barcoding and Audit [Includes Hardware] – 
Fleet Maintenance – Licenses and Permits – Personnel Management – Pin Mapping – Premise 
Information – Traffic and Citation Management – Sex Offender Tracking – Alabama eCitation 
Import – Jail Management (Police Department) – LiveScan Interface – ReportBeam Interface 

Analytics – Spillman Analytics – Crime Monitor Interface – CompStat Management Dashboard  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PROPERTY LOCATION: 
Pascagoula Police Department 
611 Live Oak Avenue 
Pascagoula, MS 39567 



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 

7 

EXHIBIT B 
>>  SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS & EARLY REDEMPTION VALUE  << 

TECHNOLOGY LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO. 7329 
BY AND BETWEEN 

Lessor, Government Capital Corporation  
and  Lessee, City of Pascagoula 

Schedule dated as of April 15, 2016 
PMT PMT DATE TOTAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL EARLY REDEMPTION VALUE 
NO. MO.  DAY  YR PAYMENT PAID PAID after pmt on this line 
1 10/15/2016 $150,000.00 $12,277.30 $137,722.70 N/A 
2 10/15/2017 $215,140.19 $19,677.45 $195,462.74 $415,210.93 
3 10/15/2018 $215,140.19 $13,326.86 $201,813.33 $210,077.32 
4 10/15/2019 $215,140.19 $6,769.96 $208,370.23 $1.00 

Grand Totals $795,420.57 $52,051.57 $743,369.00 
  

 
 

Interest Rate: 3.249% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Accepted By Lessee: _____________________________________ 
Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager 

  



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 

8 

INCUMBENCY, INSURANCE, AND ESSENTIAL USE CERTIFICATES 
TECHNOLOGY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT No. 7329 (THE "AGREEMENT") 

BY AND BETWEEN 
Lessor, Government Capital Corporation and Lessee, City of Pascagoula 

Dated as of April 5, 2016 
 

I, Brenda J. Reed, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected or appointed and acting Assistant City Clerk (Keeper of 
the Records), of City of Pascagoula, a political subdivision or agency duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Mississippi, that I have custody of the records of such entity, and that, as of the date hereof, the individual(s) named below are 
the duly elected or appointed officer(s) of such entity holding the office(s) set forth opposite their respective name(s). I further 
certify that (i) the signature(s) set opposite their respective name(s) and title(s) are their true and authentic signature(s), and (ii) 
such officers have the authority on behalf of such entity to enter into that certain Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement dated as of 
April 5, 2016, between such entity and Government Capital Corporation. 
 
 

Name Title 
 

Signature 

 
Joseph R. Huffman 

 
 
City Manager 

 
 
_______________________ 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have duly executed this certificate hereto this ____day of_____________ 2016. 
 
 

BY: _______________________________________________ 
Brenda J. Reed, Assistant City Clerk 

 
 
Lessee certifies that property and liability insurance, if applicable, have been secured in accordance with the Agreement and such 
coverage will be maintained in full force for the term of the Agreement.   "Lessor or its Assigns" should be designated as loss payee 
until Lessee is notified, in writing, to substitute a new loss payee. The following information is provided about insurance-- 

INSURANCE COMPANY/AGENT'S NAME: ______________________________________________________________________ 

INSURANCE COMPANY ADDRESS: __________________________________________________________________________ 

PHONE NUMBER: ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

POLICY NUMBER: _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
I, Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager, of City of Pascagoula ("Lessee"), hereby certify that the Property to be leased to the 
undersigned under the certain Lease Agreement, dated as of April 5, 2016, between such entity and Government Capital Corporation 
("Lessor"), will be used by the undersigned Lessee for the following purpose:   
(PLEASE FILL OUT PRIMARY USE BELOW) 
 
PRIMARY USE ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
The undersigned hereby represents that the use of the Property is essential to its proper, efficient and economic operation. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _______day of___________________, 2016. 
 
 

By Lessee: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager 
 
For Lessee: City of Pascagoula 

 



Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 9 

SELF-INSURANCE CERTIFICATE 
TECHNOLOGY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT No. 7329 (THE "AGREEMENT") 

BY AND BETWEEN 
Lessor, Government Capital Corporation and Lessee, City of Pascagoula 

Dated as of April 5, 2016 
 
 
City of Pascagoula (the "Lessee") is self-insured with respect to all of its insurance risks, which risks include, but are not limited to, 
the Property which is the subject matter of the herein mentioned Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement, dated April 5, 2016.  
Lessee further states that should the Lessee cease to be self-insured, Lessee will either purchase insurance or provide insurance 
under its then acquired master policy.  In the event Lessee should cease to be self-insured, this certificate shall become null and void 
and Lessee shall immediately notify Lessor by return mail, return receipt requested, of such change and shall comply in full with the 
requirements to obtain insurance, as contained in the Agreement, by obtaining insurance on the Property in the form of a single 
policy, or under a master policy. 
 
 
 
LESSEE: City of Pascagoula 
 
 

Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager 
__________________________________________ 

 
 
 

Date 
___________________________________________ 

 
  



Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 10 

 
[to be retyped on letterhead of lessee's counsel] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Government Capital Corporation 
Attention: Documentation Department 
345 Miron Drive 
Southlake, TX  76092 
 
RE: Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement No. 7329 
 
 
Dear Lessor, 
 
 
I have acted as Counsel to City of Pascagoula with respect to that certain Technology Lease-
Purchase Agreement No. 7329, by and between Government Capital Corporation as Lessor and City 
of Pascagoula as Lessee. I have reviewed the Agreement and such other documents, records and 
certificates of Lessee and appropriate public officials as I have deemed relevant and am of the 
opinion that: 
 
 
1. The Lessee is a political subdivision or agency of the State of MS with the requisite power 
and authority to incur obligations, the interest on which is exempt from taxation by virtue of 
Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; 
 
2. The execution, delivery and performance by the Lessee of the Agreement have been duly 
authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Lessee; and 
 
3. The Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Lessee enforceable in 
accordance with its terms. 
 
4. The above opinions may be relied upon by the Lessee, Lessor, or its Assigns. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Attorney at Law 

 



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 11 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION #____________ 
 

A RESOLUTION REGARDING A LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF FINANCING "LAW ENFORCEMENT SOFTWARE”. 

 
 
WHEREAS, City of Pascagoula (the “city”) desires to enter into that certain Lease-Purchase 
Agreement dated April 5, 2016, by and between Government Capital Corporation and the City of 
Pascagoula, for the purpose of financing “law enforcement software”.  The City desires to 
designate this Agreement as a "qualified tax exempt obligation" of the City of Pascagoula for the 
purposes of Section 265 (b) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  The City desires 
to designate Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager, as an authorized signer of the Agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF PASCAGOULA: 
 
Section 1.

 

 That the City enters into a Lease Purchase Agreement with Government Capital 
Corporation for the purpose of financing "law enforcement software ". 

Section 2.

 

 That the Lease Purchase Agreement dated April 5, 2016, by and between the City and 
Government Capital Corporation is designated by the City as a "qualified tax exempt obligation" for 
the purposes of Section 265 (b) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

Section 3.

 

 That the City of Pascagoula designates Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager, as an 
authorized signer of the Lease Purchase Agreement dated April 5, 2016, by and between the City of 
Pascagoula and Government Capital Corporation. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City of Pascagoula in a meeting held on the 5th day of April, 2016. 
 
 
 

Lessee: City of Pascagoula Witness Signature 
 
 
____________________________ 

 
 
_____________________________ 

Harry J. Blevins, Mayor Brenda J. Reed, Assistant City Clerk 

 



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 12 

ESCROW AGREEMENT 
TECHNOLOGY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT No. 7329 (THE "AGREEMENT")  

BY AND BETWEEN 
Lessor, Government Capital Corporation and Lessee, City of Pascagoula 

TAX ID #64-6000949                       Dated as of April 5, 2016 
 

THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of April 5, 2016 ("Agreement Date") by and 
among Government Capital Corporation ("Lessor"), City of Pascagoula ("Lessee") and _____________________ ("Agent"). 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee have entered into a certain Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement dated as of April 5, 
2016 (the "Lease") pursuant to which the property more particularly described therein (the "Property") will be leased to the 
Lessee under the terms stated in the Lease; 

WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee desire to make funding arrangements for the acquisition of the Property, and Agent 
agrees to serve as escrow agent for such funding and acquisition; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenant herein contained and for other valuable 
consideration, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
1.  Agent shall undertake the duties and obligations of escrow agent as set forth in this Agreement.  Agent shall not be deemed 
to be a party to the Lease. 
2.  Lessor has delivered to Agent the sum of $ 743,369.00 for deposit by Agent in the City of Pascagoula Escrow Account (the 
"Fund").  The Fund will be administered by Agent pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
3.  Deposits in the Fund shall be used to pay for the acquisition of the Property.  The Property may be acquired as individual 
items or as groups of items.  Agent shall make disbursements from the Fund in payment for the acquisition of each item or group 
of items of the Property promptly upon receipt of a properly executed Escrow Disbursement Request Form, in the form attached 
hereto as “Schedule 1", for that portion of the acquisition of the Property for which payment is requested.  Upon full acquisition 
of an item or group of items of the Property, any remaining cost of such item or group of items shall be disbursed promptly by 
the Agent upon receipt of a properly executed Acceptance Certificate and a corresponding Escrow Disbursement Request Form in 
the form attached hereto as “Schedule 1", for that portion of the Property for which payment is requested.  Payment by Agent 
shall be to the payee shown on the Escrow Disbursement Request Form. 
4.  Agent will invest the Fund, as specified by Lessor, in general obligations of the United States or in obligations fully insured by 
the United States or in certificates of deposit of a bank which is either fully insured by an agency of the federal government or 
fully collateralized by such federal or federally guaranteed obligations, or in no-load money market mutual funds registered with 
and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission that includes in their investment objectives the maintenance of a 
stable net asset value of $1 for each share, or Money Market Mutual Funds registered under the Investment Act of 1940. Agent 
will retain in the Fund all earnings from investment of the Fund until termination of the Fund pursuant to Section 5 hereof. 
5.  Upon execution of one or more Acceptance Certificates by Lessee and payment of acquisition costs by Agent for all the 
Property, this Agreement and the Funds shall terminate, and Agent shall transfer to Lessor all remaining sums in the Fund.  If 
not terminated earlier, this Agreement and the Fund shall terminate on April 5, 2017 ("Termination Date").  In this latter event, 
interest accrued pursuant to investment of the Fund under the terms of Section 4 hereof and all remaining principal in the Fund 
shall be transferred by Agent to Lessor; Exhibit "A" attached to the Lease shall thereupon be revised to delete any non-acquired 
portions of the Property and to substitute an amended amortization payment schedule to reflect the reduced acquisition costs. 
6.  Lessor and Lessee may by written agreement between themselves remove the Agent, at any time and for any reason, and 
appoint a successor escrow agent.  Such removal shall not be effective until thirty (30) days after written notice thereof if 
provided to Agent. 
7.  Agent may at any time and for any reason resign as escrow agent by giving written notice to Lessor and Lessee of its 
intention to resign and of the proposed date of resignation, which date shall be not less than thirty (30) days after giving Lessee 
and Lessor written notice of intent to resign, nor less than thirty (30) days after being appointed by Lessor and Lessee. 
8.  Agent shall have no obligation under the terms of this Agreement to make any disbursement except from the Fund.  Agent 
makes no warranties or representations as to the Property or as to performance of the obligations of Lessor or Lessee under this 
Agreement or the Lease. 
9.  Agent shall be entitled to rely in good faith upon any documents signed by a party hereto and shall have no duty to 
investigate the veracity of such documents. Agent (i) may assume that any person giving notice pursuant to the terms hereof is 
authorized to do so and (ii) shall not be liable for good faith reliance thereon.  
10. To the limited extent required to perfect the security interest granted by Lessee to Lessor in the cash and negotiable 
instrument from time to time comprising the Fund, Lessor hereby appoints the Agent as its security agent, and the Agent hereby 
accepts the appointment as security agent, and agrees to hold physical possession of such cash negotiable instruments on behalf 
of Lessor. 
11.  This Agreement may be amended by written agreement executed by all the parties. 
12. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 
 
Lessor: Government Capital Corporation 
 

BY: ________________________________________________  
  Authorized Signer 
 
Lessee: City of Pascagoula 
 

BY: _________________________________________________  
Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager 

 
Agent: ____________________________________________________  

 
BY: _________________________________________________  
Agent Rep, Agent Rep Title 



 
Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement 13 

ESCROW AGREEMENT - SCHEDULE 1  
TECHNOLOGY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT No.7329 (THE "AGREEMENT") 

BY AND BETWEEN 
Lessor, Government Capital Corporation and Lessee, City of Pascagoula 

Dated as of April 5, 2016 
 

ESCROW DISBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM 
 
________________________________________________, acting as escrow agent (the "Agent") under the Escrow Agreement 
dated as of April 5, 2016 (Escrow Date) by and among the Agent, Government Capital Corporation as Lessor and City of Pascagoula 
as Lessee, is hereby requested to pay to the person or corporation designated below as Payee the sum set forth below in payment of 
the acquisition and installation costs of the Property described below.  The amount shown below is due and payable under the invoice 
of Payee with respect to the described Property and has not formed the basis any prior request for payment. 
 
 

PAYEE: __Spillman Technologies, Inc___________ ________________________________________________
 

_____ 

AMOUNT: __$185,842.00
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: _Spillman Software
 

___________________________________________________________ 

INVOICE# _32027___________________________________________________DATED:_1/28/2016
 

_________________ 

 
Indicate Method for Payment Disbursement: 

 
______Overnight Check***                  _____Regular Mail Check                                       ______Wire Funds 

 
Mailing Address: ____________________________                Wire Instructions: ________________________________ 

 
___________________________                _____________________________________ 
 
(***Please note that there might be a fee charged for overnight delivery. This  
fee will be deducted from the Escrow Balance before disbursement is made.***) 

 
Lessee: City of Pascagoula 
 

 
By: ________________________________________________ 
Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager 

 
Lessor: Government Capital Corporation 
 

 
By: _________________________________________________ 

 Authorized Signer 
 

 
ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 

 
City of Pascagoula as Lessee under that certain Technology Lease-Purchase Agreement dated as of April 5, 2016 ("Agreement Date") 
(the "Lease"), hereby acknowledges receipt in good condition of all the property described on the attached Vendor Invoice(s), hereby 
accepts such property, and hereby certifies that Lessor has fully and satisfactorily performed all covenants and conditions to be 
performed by it under the Lease with regard to such property, that such property is fully insured in accordance with Section 10 of the 
Lease and that such property constitutes all or a portion of the Property as that term as defined in the Lease. 
 
Date: _____________________________, 2016 
 

By Lessee: 
 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager 
 
For Lessee: City of Pascagoula 

  



Form 8038-G
(Rev. September 2011)

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service

Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations
 Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e)   

 See separate instructions.  

Caution: If the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC.

OMB No. 1545-0720

Part I Reporting Authority If Amended Return, check here  
1 Issuer’s name 2 Issuer’s employer identification number (EIN)

3a Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return (see instructions) 3b Telephone number of other person shown on 3a

4 Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite 5 Report number (For IRS Use Only)

3 
6 City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 7 Date of issue

8 Name of issue 9 CUSIP number

10a Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information (see 
instructions)

10b Telephone number of officer or other 
employee shown on 10a

Part II Type of Issue (enter the issue price). See the instructions and attach schedule.
11 Education . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 

12 Health and hospital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 

13 Transportation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 

14 Public safety . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 

15 Environment (including sewage bonds) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 

16 Housing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 

17 Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 

18 Other. Describe  18 

19 If obligations are TANs or RANs, check only box 19a  . . . . . . . . . . . . .   
If obligations are BANs, check only box 19b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   

20 If obligations are in the form of a lease or installment sale, check box . . . . . . . .   

Part III Description of Obligations. Complete for the entire issue for which this form is being filed.

21 

(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price
(c) Stated redemption 

price at maturity
(d) Weighted 

average maturity
(e) Yield

$ $ years % 
Part IV Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)

22 Proceeds used for accrued interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 

23 Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21, column (b)) . . . . . . . . . . . 23 

24 Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount) . . 24 

25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 

26 Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund . 26 

27 Proceeds used to currently refund prior issues . . . . . . . . . 27 

28 Proceeds used to advance refund prior issues . . . . . . . . . 28 

29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 

30 Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract line 29 from line 23 and enter amount here) . . . 30 

Part V Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.
31 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be currently refunded . . . .  years
32 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be advance refunded . . . .  years
33 Enter the last date on which the refunded bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY)  . . . . . .  

34 Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued  (MM/DD/YYYY)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat. No. 63773S Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2011)

City of Pascagoula 64-6000949

Brenda J. Reed, Assistant City Clerk 228-938-6716

P.O. Drawer 1385

Pascagoula, MS 39568

Lease Purchase Agreement No. 7329 None

Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager 228-938-6716

$743,369 00

✔

10/15/2019 743,369.00 N/A 2.647 3.249

N/A
$743,369 00

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
$743,369 00

N/A
N/A

N/A



Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2011) Page 2 

Part VI Miscellaneous

35 Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141(b)(5) . . . . 35 

 36 a Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract  
(GIC) (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36a

b Enter the final maturity date of the GIC 

c Enter the name of the GIC provider 
37 Pooled financings:  Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans

to other governmental units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37 

38 a If this issue is a loan made from the proceeds of another tax-exempt issue, check box and enter the following information: 
b Enter the date of the master pool obligation 

c Enter the EIN of the issuer of the master pool obligation 

d Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool obligation 

39 If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) (small issuer exception), check box . . . .  
40 If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
41 a If the issuer has identified a hedge, check here and enter the following information:

b Name of hedge provider 
c Type of hedge 
d Term of hedge 

42 If the issuer has superintegrated the hedge, check box . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
43 If the issuer has established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified bonds of this issue are remediated 

according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), check box . . . . . . . .  

44 If the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, check box . . . . .  
45a If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here and enter the amount

of reimbursement . . . . . . . . .  
b Enter the date the official intent was adopted 

Signature 

and  

Consent

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge  
and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. I further declare that I consent to the IRS’s disclosure of the issuer’s return information, as necessary to 
process this return, to the person that I have authorized above.

Signature of issuer’s authorized representative Date Type or print name and title

Paid 
Preparer 
Use Only

Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer's signature Date
Check         if 
self-employed

PTIN

Firm’s name      

Firm's address  

Firm's EIN  

Phone no.

Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2011)

✔

Joseph R. Huffman, City Manager







OPENGOV, INC. SOFTWARE AGREEMENT 
	  

3 
	  

disclosure; or (iii) is independently developed by the Receiving Party without access to such Confidential Information. 
Notwithstanding the above, the Receiving Party may disclose Confidential Information to the extent required by law or 
court order, provided that prior written notice of such required disclosure and an opportunity to oppose or limit 
disclosure is given to the Disclosing Party. 
 
5.   DATA LICENSE. Customer grants OpenGov a non-exclusive, transferable, perpetual, worldwide, and royalty-free 
license to use any data or information submitted by Customer to OpenGov for the development of new software or 
the provision of the Software Services. 
 
6.     PAYMENT OF FEES. The fees for the Software Services (“Fees”) are set forth in the applicable Software 
Agreement.  Customer shall pay all Fees within forty-five (45) days after the date of OpenGov’s invoice (which 
OpenGov typically sends 45 days after the Effective Date). 
 
7.        TERM & TERMINATION 
 
7.1     Subject to compliance with all terms and conditions, the term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date 
and shall continue until the End date specified on page one (1) of the Agreement. The Customer will be billed 
according to the Billing Frequency as specified above. If either party materially breaches any term of this Agreement 
and fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) days after notice by the non-breaching party (ten (10) days in the case 
of non-payment), the non-breaching party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice. 
 
7.2     Upon termination, Customer will pay in full for all Software Services performed up to and including the effective 
date of termination. Upon any termination of this Agreement: (a) all Software Services provided to Customer 
hereunder shall immediately terminate; and (b) each party shall return to the other party or, at the other party’s option, 
destroy all Confidential Information of the other party in its possession. 
 
7.3     All sections of this Agreement which by their nature should survive termination will survive termination, 
including, without limitation, accrued rights to payment, confidentiality obligations, warranty disclaimers, and 
limitations of liability. 
 
8.       WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER 
 
8.1     OpenGov represents and warrants that: (i) it has all right and authority necessary to enter into and perform this 
Agreement; and (ii) the Software Services shall be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner in 
accordance with generally prevailing industry standards. 
 
8.2     Customer represents and warrants that (i) it has all right and authority necessary to enter into and perform this 
Agreement; (ii) it owns all right, title, and interest in and to all data provided to OpenGov for use in and in connection 
with this Agreement, or possesses the necessary authorization thereto; and (iii) OpenGov’s use of such materials in 
connection with the Software Services will not violate the rights of any third party. 
 
8.3     OPENGOV DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE SOFTWARE SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR 
ERROR FREE; NOR DOES IT MAKE ANY WARRANTY AS TO THE RESULTS THAT MAY BE OBTAINED FROM 
USE OF THE SOFTWARE SERVICES.  EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 8, THE SOFTWARE 
SERVICES ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND OPENGOV DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, TITLE, FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NON-INFRINGEMENT. 
 
9.       LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY MISSISSIPPI LAW, NEITHER PARTY, NOR ITS 
SUPPLIERS, OFFICERS, AFFILIATES, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES, SHALL BE 
RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT OR RELATED 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS UNDER ANY CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, OR OTHER THEORY: 
(A) FOR ERROR OR INTERRUPTION OF USE OR FOR LOSS OR INACCURACY OF DATA OR COST OF 
PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES OR LOSS OF BUSINESS; (B) FOR ANY INDIRECT, 
EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES; OR (C) FOR ANY MATTER 
BEYOND SUCH PARTY’S REASONABLE CONTROL, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGE. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY’S AGGREGATE, 
CUMULATIVE LIABILITY  FOR ANY CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS 



OPENGOV, INC. SOFTWARE AGREEMENT 
	  

4 
	  

AGREEMENT EXCEED THE FEES PAID BY CUSTOMER TO OPENGOV (OR, IN THE CASE OF CUSTOMER, 
PAYABLE) FOR THE SOFTWARE SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 12 MONTHS PRIOR TO THE 
ACT THAT GAVE RISE TO THE LIABILITY. 
 
10.     MISCELLANEOUS. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in these Terms and Conditions have the meaning 
set forth in the applicable Software Agreement. Neither party shall be held responsible or liable for any losses arising 
out of any delay or failure in performance of any part of this Agreement, other than payment obligations, due to any 
act of god, act of governmental authority, or due to war, riot, labor difficulty,  failure of performance by any third party 
service, utilities, or equipment provider, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of the party delayed or 
prevented from performing. OpenGov shall have the right to use and display Customer’s logos and trade names for 
marketing and promotional purposes in connection with OpenGov’s website and marketing materials, subject to 
Customer’s trademark usage guidelines (as provided to OpenGov). If any provision of this Agreement is found to be 
unenforceable or invalid, that provision will be limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this 
Agreement will otherwise remain in full force and effect and enforceable.  This Agreement is not assignable or 
transferable by either party without the other party’s prior written consent, provided however that either party may 
assign this Agreement to a successor to all or substantially all of its business or assets.  This Agreement (including 
the Software Agreement) is the complete and exclusive statement of the mutual understanding of the parties and 
supersedes and cancels all previous written and oral agreements, communications, and other understandings 
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, and that all waivers and modifications must be in a writing signed by 
both parties.  No agency, partnership, joint venture, or employment is created as a result of this Agreement and 
neither party has any authority of any kind to bind the other party in any respect.  In any action or proceeding to 
enforce rights under this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover costs and attorneys’ fees if 
ordered to do so by a court of competent jurisdiction. All notices under this Agreement will be in writing and will be 
deemed to have been duly given when received, if personally delivered; when receipt is electronically confirmed, if 
transmitted by facsimile or e-mail; the day after it is sent, if sent for next day delivery by recognized overnight delivery 
service; and upon receipt, if sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.  This Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi without regard to its conflict of laws provisions 

 



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  4/5/16     

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  City Manager   

 
Contact Name:                Phone:             

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Work‐Session with Council to discuss the Public Works and Solid Waste 
Contracts 

Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   

Consider a date for a work‐session on Public Works and Solid Waste Contracts  

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 21.



     



cwarren
Typewritten Text
22.







     



Agenda Number:  

04-05-2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Appointment to the Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority

Consider appointment to replace Jackie Grimes, whose term will expire on April 18, 2016.
Whoever is appointed will serve a five-year term from April 19, 2016. Mr. Grimes has
expressed an interest in being re-appointed.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
23.



     



Agenda Number:  

04-05-2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Central Business District Revision - Conceptual Design

Approve the proposed revisions to the Central Business District.

✔

cwarren
Typewritten Text
24.



 = Central Business District Tract 1 

     - Projects eligible for full exemption  

       (up to 80% exemption) 

 = CBD Tract 2 

     - Projects eligible for 65% exemption 

 = CBD Tract 3 

     - Projects eligible for 50% exemption 

Central Business District—2016 Revision  



M
A
R
K
E
T
 
S
T
.

C

S

X

 

R

.

R

.

D

E

N

N

Y

 

A

V

E

.

 

(

H

W

Y

9

0

)

C

S

X

 

R

.

R

.

T

E

L

E

P

H

O

N

E

 

R

D

.

 

(

H

W

Y

 

6

1

3

)

DENNY AVE. (HWY90)

INGALLS AVE.

PARSLEY AVE.

1
4
T
H

 
S
T
.

C
H

I
C
O

 
S
T
.

O

L

D

 
M

O

B

I

L

 
H

W

Y

.

M

A

G

N

O

L

I

A

 

S

T

.

C
E
D

A
R
 
S
T
.

CITY LIMIT LINE

CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT

LEGEND

SCALE: 1" = 

0

1000'

2000'1000'

S
C

A
LE

S
 A

C
C

O
R

D
IN

G
LY

.

Rev. No.

SHEET OF

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

TH
IS

 S
H

E
E

T,
A

D
JU

S
T

O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
W

IN
G

.
IF

 N
O

T 
O

N
E

 IN
C

H
 O

N

V
E

R
IF

Y
 S

C
A

LE
S

0
1"

E
-
m

a
i
l
:
 
c
o
m

p
t
o
n
@

c
o
m

p
t
o
n
e
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

P
h
o
n
e
:
 
(
2
2
8
)
 
7
6
2
-
3
9
7
0
 
 
F
a
x
:
 
(
2
2
8
)
 
7
6
9
-
9
0
7
9

E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
,
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m

e
n
t
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

CO
M

PT
ON

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

, IN
C.

P
a
s
c
a
g
o
u
l
a
,
 
M

i
s
s
i
s
s
i
p
p
i
 
 
3
9
5
6
7

1
7
0
6
 
C
o
n
v
e
n
t
 
A
v
e
n
u
e

A
P
V
D

.
:

C
H

K
.
:

D
S
G

N
.
:

D
A
T
E
:

J
O

B
 
N

O
.
:

S
C
A
L
E
:

D
W

G
.
 
B
Y
:

1

A

1

E
X
H

I
B
I
T

P
D

P

C
E
N

T
R
A
L
 
B
U

S
I
N

E
S
S
 
D

I
S
T
R
I
C
T
 
D

E
S
I
G

N
A
T
I
O

N

P
D

P

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r
 
2
0
1
5

2
1
3
-
0
0
8
.
0
2
4

1
"
 
=

 
1
0
0
0
'

C
I
T
Y

 
O

F
 
P

A
S

C
A

G
O

U
L
A

11/23/15 ISSUED FOR REVIEW PDP PDPA

S
:
\
P
a
s
c
a
g
o
u
l
a
\
0
-
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
1
3
\
2
1
3
-
0
0
8
 
C
O

P
 
M

i
s
c
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
\
0
2
4
 
M

i
s
c
 
D

r
a
f
t
i
n
g
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
\
S
u
r
v
e
y
\
D

w
g
s
\
C
B
D

 
D

e
s
i
g
n
a
t
i
o
n
.
d
w

g
,
 
1
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
8
:
0
0
 
P
M

,
 
p
a
u
l
,
 
1
:
2
.
0
1
3
2
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPRIETARY RIGHTS CLAUSE: INFORMATION AND DATA CONTAINED ON THIS DRAWING IS CONFIDENTIAL. IF GIVEN TO AN ENTITY NOT HAVING A CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE ENGINEER, THE INFORMATION SHALL NOT BE USED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN PERMISSION. THIS LEGEND SHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE MARKED ON ANY REPRODUCTIONS HEREOF IN WHOLE OR IN PART: COMPTON ENGINEERING, INC.  C  COPYRIGHT 2009.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text
Existing Central Business District 4-5-2016

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text

jdearman
Typewritten Text



     



Agenda Number:  

04-05-2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Brownfields - Phase II Environmental Site Assessment for the Pascagoula Ice
and Freezer Company Property

Authorize the City Manager to execute the cost proposal for the Phase II Environmental Site
Assessment for the Pascagoula Ice and Freezer Company Property. Although funded by the
City, this will be part of the City's EPA funded Brownfields City-wide Assessment Grant.

✔

cwarren
Typewritten Text
25.



	

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL (jdearman@cityofpascagoula.com) 
March 25, 2016 
 
Ms. Jen Dearman 
Director of Community Development 
City of Pascagoula 
630 Delmas Avenue 
Pascagoula, Mississippi  39567 
 
Re: Cost Proposal – Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment  
 Pascagoula Ice and Freezer Company Property, Pascagoula, Mississippi 
 
Dear Ms. Dearman: 
 
Allen Engineering and Science (AllenES) is pleased to submit this cost proposal to you and the City of 
Pascagoula (City) for conducting a limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) at the above-
referenced site located at 3708 Pascagoula Street in Pascagoula, Mississippi.  The objective of 
completing this Phase II ESA is to evaluate the presence, nature and/or extent of soil and groundwater 
impact, if present, associated with five (5) of the six (6) Recognized Environmental Conditions (RECs) 
identified in draft Phase I ESA findings recently prepared on the subject site (AllenES, March 2016).  
AllenES proposed scope of work, anticipated schedule, and estimated costs for completing the work are 
summarized below. 
 
Background 
Based on the draft findings from AllenES Phase I ESA, AllenES established the following RECs, including 
active, controlled (CREC), and historical (HREC) and more generalized Areas of Potential Environmental 
Concern (AECs) at the subject site. 
 

REC / AEC Name Investigation Recommended? 
REC-1/AEC-1 - Former Ammonia-based Refrigeration System Yes (soil / groundwater) 
REC-2/AEC-2 - Former Engine and Compression Operations Yes (soil / groundwater)
REC-3/AEC-3 - Former Foundry Operations Yes (soil / groundwater)
REC-4/AEC-4 –Historical Dry Cleaners (Offsite) Yes (groundwater only)
REC-5/AEC-5 – Undifferentiated Historical Filling Stations and Auto 

Repair Operations (Offsite) 
Yes (groundwater only)

CREC-1/AEC-6 - Former/Current Leaking Underground Storage 
Tank (LUST) Sites (Offsite) 

No

AEC-7 - Onsite Water Wells Yes (Not included herein)
 
Scope of Work  
AllenES will complete focused Phase II ESA soil and groundwater sampling on the interior and exterior of 
the property proximal to each of the five (5) onsite/offsite RECs of concern.  Soil borings will be advanced 



	

predominantly with an all-terrain 7700-series direct-push technology (DPT) drilling rig supplemented with a 
manually-advanced hand auger.  AllenES will utilize field screening techniques (visual and olfactory 
descriptions, head-space screening with an organic vapor detector (OVD), and Oil Red O testing for the 
presence/absence of free and residual-phase non-aqueous liquids, if necessary, to assist in identifying worst-
case intervals to sample as well as to guide in generalizing the lateral- and vertical-bounding of impact, if 
present.   

AllenES is recommending the uppermost water-bearing zone (UWZ) be sampled at up to five (5) locations 
using temporary PVC monitor points (TMPs) with 10-slot screens pre-packed with 20/40 sand installed with 
the DPT rig.  The well points are anticipated to be installed at depths of up to fifteen feet below land surface 
(bls).  Following well development and then purging each point will be sampled using low stress methods 
using a peristaltic pump with low density polyethylene tubing or mini bailer.  At least three (3) TMPs will be 
installed to allow for determining the potentiometric surface elevation and direction of flow.  Each well will be 
completed with a man-hole cover encased in concrete.  The top of casings and ground elevations will be 
measured determined.  Borings advanced through concrete or asphalt will be replaced as necessary.   

Soil samples will be collected in accordance with applicable state/federal guidelines.  The number of soil 
borings, samples and laboratory parameters will be selected based on the nature and extent of potential 
impact.  However, for the purposes of this proposal, AllenES proposes to advance no more than twelve (12) 
soil borings to depths up to twenty (20) feet bls with TMPs installed into five (5) of the twelve (12) borings 
that intercept the UWZ.  It is assumed that up to ten (10) soil samples will be collected from the advanced 
borings and five (5) groundwater samples (from TMPs).  One (1) sample will be collected from worst case 
impacted zones around the site and, if necessary, one (1) additional sample may be collected at depth and/or 
lateral to impact observed in other borings (if applicable) to attempt to vertically- and/or laterally bound impact 
believed to be below applicable Target Remedial Goals (TRGs) established by the MDEQ’s Brownfield’s 
Program (2002).  All other sampling will focus on screening for the presence of impact using field screening 
techniques including visual and olfactory evaluation and headspace testing using a portable OVD.  Soil and 
groundwater samples will be placed in iced coolers and submitted under proper chain of custody 
documentation to Test America Laboratories or other qualified laboratory for testing of one (1) or more of the 
following baseline constituents of concern (CoCs): 
 

 Target Compound List (TCL) Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) using SW-846 Method 8260 
 Ammonia Nitrogen using EPA SW 846 Method 4500F or similar 
 Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons using EPA SW 846 Method 8270 or similar 
 Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) using EPA SW 846 Method 8080 
 Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Metals using EPA SW-846 6000/7000 series 

methods 
 
The actual number of soil samples and laboratory parameters will be determined based on the nature and 
extent of potential impact identified in the field and real-time communication with and authorizations from the 
City.  For proposal purposes, AllenES has assumed $200 of analytical testing per soil and groundwater 
sample (on average) based on a 15 day normal turn-around time.  Please note that sampling will target 
“worst-case” locations or intervals, and be designed to provide an indication of the relative degree of 
environmental impact at the site as opposed to full delineation of all impact observed onsite.  Subsequent 
assessment activities may be required to characterize the full nature and extent of impact detected. 
 
The results from the focused soil and groundwater sampling will be incorporated into a stand-alone Phase II 
ESA report that will include a description of sampling activities, a site map illustrating sampling locations, soil 



	

boring logs with well construction information, tables summarizing the soil and groundwater sampling results, 
a potentiometric surface map, laboratory analytical data sheets along with a comparison of sampling data to 
applicable regulatory screening standards, and recommendations regarding the findings. 
 
Anticipated Schedule  
AllenES is prepared to complete the above-referenced work and reporting within six (6) weeks of receipt of 
formal authorization to proceed.  This schedule assumes we will be able to schedule and mobilize to the site 
within two weeks of receipt of the authorization to proceed.  The above-referenced schedule can be 
accelerated by expediting the laboratory turn-around time but this will likely result in additional surcharge.   

Estimated Costs  
AllenES can complete the above-described limited Phase II ESA work for a time and expense (T&E) basis 
of Eighteen Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars ($18,900). 
 
This cost estimate does not include any sampling within any of the onsite water supply wells.  AllenES is 
prepared to provide estimated costs for this recommended sampling upon request.  AllenES assumes that 
the land owner and/or the City of Pascagoula will be able to locate buried utilities within the interior of the 
subject property as AllenES will initiate a MS One Call away from the property.  Out of scope items will 
include, but not be limited to, having to hire a utility finder for within the property as well as needing to spend 
more than three (3) days onsite for the subsurface investigation. 
 
Closing  
If this cost estimate is acceptable, please sign below and return the signed page to our attention via electronic 
mail.  AllenES appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to you and the City of Pascagoula.  Please 
call me at (601) 936-4440 or (601) 583-2182 if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
Allen Engineering and Science, Inc. 

 
John M. Ryan, RPG, CHMM   
Associate Scientist 
 
 
 
Jay C. Estes, AICP 
Senior Principal Planner & Director of Operations 
 
 
Authorized on ___________________, 2016 by ___________________________________ 
 

Title__________________________________ 



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  April 5, 2016     

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  Parks and Recreation   

 
Contact Name:  Darcie S. Crew    Phone:  228‐938‐2356 

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Pascagoula Recreation Commission Appointment ‐ April 2016
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   
Accept application from David Blackledge for the vacancy on the Pascagoula Recreation Commission.  
Appoint new member to the Pascagoula Recreation Commission effective April 6, 2016. 

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 26.









For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  April 5, 2016      

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  Parks and Recreation   

 
Contact Name:  Darcie Crew    Phone:  228‐938‐2356 

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Job Description for Beautification Crew Leader
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   
 Approve job description for the Beautification Crew Leader.  This is a change in description and upgrade from 
CWC Superintendent (grade 106) to Beautification Crew Leader (grade 108).  

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 27.



Beautification Crew Leader   1 of 2   Beautification Crew Leader 

   
 

 

Beautification Crew Leader  
 

DEPARTMENT: Parks & Recreation LABOR GRADE: 108  

EXEMPT(Y/N): No   POSITION CODE:    
REPORTS TO:   Director of Beautification and Maintenance 

 
MEETING PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS 

 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must perform each essential duty satisfactorily.  The requirements listed below are 
representative of the knowledge, skills and/or ability required.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
SUMMARY:  

 

This position is responsible for the maintenance of landscaped areas, the general positive 

appearance of entryways and public green spaces in the City of Pascagoula.  

     

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES include the following: 

 

 Provides direct supervision and oversight of the daily maintenance of the beautification and 
landscaped areas within the City of Pascagoula.  

 Oversees the maintenance of all landscaped areas including rights-of-way, roadways, major 
thoroughfares, medians and green spaces including installation of plants, flowers, shrubbery, 
trees, mulch and other items to beautify the City. 

 Maintains small equipment and minor vehicular repairs. 
 Must possess the ability to safely use gardening hand tools and equipment including 

chainsaws, mowers, hedgers, augers, and tool sharpening equipment.  
 Provides training to the beautification staff in the proper and safe use of hand tools and 

mechanical equipment necessary for the performance of the assigned duties. 
 Operates heavy equipment. 
 Plans, prioritizes and implements work schedules. 
 Completes the necessary paperwork such as work orders, timesheets and material 

requisitions.   
 Briefs Director and makes recommendations on job status and personnel issues. 
 Plans and organizes the job, ensuring that sufficient resources and materials are available. 
 Maintains assigned equipment and notifies management of repair needs. 
 Supervises Beautification Laborers and Seasonal Urban Youth Corps Laborers. 
 

 
The absence of specific statements of duties does not exclude those tasks from the position if 

the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment of the position. 

 

City of Pascagoula 

Job Description 



Beautification Crew Leader   2 of 2   Beautification Crew Leader 

                                       QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS:  
 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this position.   
 
SUPERVISORY REQUIREMENT: 

 

This position directly supervises full-time and part-time laborers on a daily basis and seasonal Urban 
Youth Corps Laborers. 
 

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE: 
 

A high school graduate or its equivalent. Five (5) to ten (10) years experience in a manual labor 
supervisory position directly related to outside activities or an equivalent combination of education 
and experience that results in the required knowledge, skills, and abilities is required.    
 

SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS: 

 

A state of Mississippi Department of Agriculture and Commerce Commercial Pesticide Applicator 
Certificate or the ability to obtain one within 12 months of employment is required. The ability to 
operate a variety of equipment and tools including forklifts, end loaders, mowers, mechanic tools, 
and trucks is required. A valid Mississippi Class D driver’s license is required. 
 

LANGUAGE AND REASONING SKILLS: 

 
Ability to understand written or oral instructions; read, analyze and interpret complex documents, 
instruction manuals, policies and procedures is essential.  Excellent communication skills are 
required to effectively present information in a one-on-one and small group setting.  Strong 
interpersonal skills are essential to maintain effective working relationships with others.  The ability 
to work effectively and efficiently, under stressful conditions, to ensure deadlines are met is 
essential.  Must have demonstrated, through prior work experience, the ability to identify and resolve 
complex issues and problems while adhering to an appropriate policy and procedure. 
 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 

 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
 
This position is required to sit, stand, and walk for a sustained period of time; the ability to see and 
hear; bend and lift up to 100 pounds. Work requires the ability to differentiate between colors, climb, 
crawl, stoop and possess physical dexterity. 
 

WORKING ENVIRONMENT: 

 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee 
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. 
 
This position typically performs work in a poorly lit and inadequately heated and ventilated 
environment. Observance of safe work practices and avoidance of falls, trips, and similar 
construction site hazards. 



     



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  April 5, 2016      

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  Parks and Recreation   

 
Contact Name:  Darcie Crew    Phone:  228‐938‐2356 

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Job Description for Laborer ‐ Beautification
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   
 Approve  job description  for  Laborer  ‐ Beautification.    This  is  a new position which  is necessary due  to  the 
elimination of the MDOC County Work Center Inmate Program.  

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 28.



Laborer - Beautification    1 of 2             Laborer - Beautification  

   
 

   

 

 

  

Laborer - Beautification 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Parks and Recreation POSITION CODE:       

EXEMPT(Y/N):    No   PAY GRADE:  104    
REPORTS TO:  Beautification Crew Leader  

 
MEETING PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS 

 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must perform each essential duty satisfactorily.  The requirements listed below are 
representative of the knowledge, skills and/or ability required.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
SUMMARY:  

 

This full-time position is responsible for performing routine maintenance work in and around 

the City of Pascagoula in accordance with all applicable laws and City of Pascagoula policies 

and procedures.   

     

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES include the following: 

 

 Operates a small dump truck to transport sand, clay, soil and supplies. 
 Operates a light truck to carry tools, equipment supplies, and crews to and from job sites.  
 Operates a tractor with front-end loader and box blades to prepare existing and new landscaped 

areas; occasionally services and performs minor repairs on automotive equipment. 
 Assists in loading and unloading materials and equipment. 
 Prepares soil, installs plants, flowers, shrubbery and mulch to landscaped areas; pulls weeds; 

provides chemical application of weed control as needed. 
 Cleans vacant lots and rights-of-way as needed.  
 Performs general cleaning and maintenance tasks in and around City facilities; 
 Trims tree limbs and bushes and performs general yard work such as mowing and edging; 
 Determines the equipment and supplies needed to perform duties. 
 Prepares and maintains all types of landscaped areas including rights-of-way, roadway 

medians, green spaces and major thoroughfares. 
 Picks up litter and debris throughout the City; ensures the safety and security of each 

landscaped areas. 
 Any other duties assigned by the Beautification Crew Leader. 

 
The absence of specific statements of duties does not exclude those tasks from the position if 

the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment of the position. 

 
                                       QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS:  
 

Job Description 



Laborer - Beautification    2 of 2             Laborer - Beautification  

The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this position.   
 
SUPERVISORY REQUIREMENT: 

 

This position does not supervise any employees. 
 

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE: 

 

Some experience in the operation of automotive equipment, tractors, and trucks; prepares and 
maintains landscaped areas; maintaining equipment; and completion of a standard grade school 
course or any equivalent combination of experience and training which provides the required 
knowledge, skills and abilities. 
 

SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS: 

 

Knowledge of traffic rules; mechanical aptitude; ability to make minor repairs and adjustments to 
equipment; dependability; knowledge of skill and semi-skill trades such as, plant types and installation   
and a valid Mississippi driver’s license is required. 
 

LANGUAGE AND REASONING SKILLS: 

 
Ability to understand written or oral instructions; read, analyze and interpret documents, instruction 
manuals, policies and procedures is essential.  Strong interpersonal skills are essential to maintain 
effective working relationships with others.  The ability to work effectively and efficiently to ensure 
deadlines are met is essential.  Must have demonstrated, through prior work experience, the ability to 
identify and resolve problems while adhering to an appropriate policy and procedure. 
 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 

 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to talk or hear. The 
employee is also regularly required to stand; walk; sit; and use hands to finger, handle or feel objects, 
tools or controls.  The employee is occasionally required to reach with hands and arms, and to sit; 
climb or balance and stoop, kneel, crouch or crawl, lift and move heavy objects and operate lawn 
care equipment.  The employee is required to lift objects weighing 50 lbs or more and operate 
mowers and tractors. 
 

WORKING ENVIRONMENT: 

 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee 
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. 
The majority of work is performed outdoors in all types of weather conditions.  The noise level in the 
work environment is usually moderate. 



     



cwarren
Typewritten Text

cwarren
Typewritten Text
29.

cwarren
Typewritten Text












































	Agenda 4-5-16
	1. AIR - 2016 Fair Housing Month Proclamation
	AIR - 2016 Fair Housing Month Proclamation
	2016 Fair Housing Month Proclamation

	2.1 AIR - Proclamation-1
	2.2 PROC - National Walking Day 2016
	3.1 AIR - Pilgrimage Proclamation-1
	3.2 PROC - Spring Pilgrimage Day 2016
	4. AIR-Koast Karate Assoc. 2015 State Champions
	5. AIR - 2016 - Best of Pascagoula Recognition
	6. AIR - Minutes of Recessed Council Meeting 3-15-16 - (4-5-16)
	7. AIR - PRA minutes 2-11-2016 and 2-26-2016
	8. AIR - PMYC Minutes 3-14-2016
	9. 2016 1 27  HPC Minutes AIR revised
	2016 1 27  HPC Minutes AIR
	2016 1 27  HPC Minutes AIR  flat

	2016 1 27  HPC Minutes

	10. 167th Meeting Strategic Plan - AIR revised
	167th Meeting Strategic Plan - AIR
	167th Meeting Strategic Plan - AIR fflat

	167th Meeting Strategic Plan

	11. AIR - Litter Bugs Me 2016
	12. AIR-Approval for 2016 Annual Conference
	13. AIR - 4-5-16 - Resolution to place lien on 1415 St Peter
	14. AIR - 4-5-16 - Order Property Cleanup - Prospect & Chateau
	15. AIR - 4-5-16 - Amend Ordinance - Article III - City Prosecutor
	16. AIR - Econ Internship 2016 Agreement
	17. AIR - Award of 2016 Fireworks Showf
	18. AIR - Amended BB Jennings Professional Services 2016
	AIR - Amended BB Jennings Professional Services 2016
	Letter to Darcie Crew (Amendment #1) 3-9-16.pdf

	19. AIR - Compton TO Market St Area 1 w attach
	20. AIR FormPLUS - Government Capital Corp. contract-1
	21 AIR-Request Work Session on UP & Solid Waste Contract
	22. AIR - 4-5-16 - Amend Ordinance - Article III - Public Defender
	23. AIR - PRA Appointment 2016
	24. AIR - CBD 2016 Revision Concept
	25. AIR - Brownfields Ice House Ph II
	26. AIR - Rec. Commission Appointment April 2016
	AIR - Pasc. Rec. Commission Appt. April 2016
	David Blackledge Appl.pdf

	27. AIR - Beautification Crew Leader Proposed 2016
	AIR - Beautification Crew Leader 2016
	Beautification Crew Leader 2016 Proposed.pdf

	28. AIR - Laborer Beautification Proposed 2016
	AIR - Beautification Laborer 2016
	Laborer - Beautification Proposed 2016.pdf

	29. Docket of Claims



